September 7, 2016

PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT

City of Fresno Program Year 2015 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016)

Federal Program Entitlement Allocations for the:

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) Housing Opportunities for Persons with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA)

> City of Fresno Development and Resource Management/ Housing Division 2600 Fresno Street, Room 3076 Fresno, CA 93721 (559) 621-8300

CAPER

July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 HUD Program Year 2015 City of Fresno Fiscal Year 2016

City of Fresno Mayor Ashley Swearengin

Fresno City Council

Paul Caprioglio – Council President, District 4 Esmeralda Soria – District 1 Steve Brandau – District 2 Oliver L. Baines III – District 3 Sal Quintero – District 5 Lee Brand – District 6 Clint Olivier – District 7

Housing and Community Development Commission

Bob Farrar– Chairperson Barbara Fiske – Vice Chairperson Barry Falke – Commissioner Brad Hardie – Commissioner Marina Harutyunyan – Commissioner Debra McKenzie – Commissioner Bob Reyes – Commissioner

Staff

Bruce Rudd, City Manager Jennifer Clark, Director – DARM Kelli Furtado, Assistant Director – DARM Crystal Smith, Business Manager – Housing Division

Table of Contents

Executive Summary	. 4
CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes	. 5
CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted	18
CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a)1	19
CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b)2	24
CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c)2	26
CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j)2	29
CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j)	29
CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230	39
CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c)	41
CR-50 - HOME 91.520(d)	42
CR-55 - HOPWA 91.520(e)	47
CR-60 - ESG 91.520(g) (ESG Recipients only)	48
CR-65 - Persons Assisted	50
CR-70 – Assistance Provided	50
CR-75 – Expenditures	51
ATTACHMENTS	55

Executive Summary

The Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) serves to meet the performance reporting requirements of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as set forth with the Consolidated Plan Regulations at 24 CFR 91.520. The performance report, due to HUD 90 days after the close of the City's program year on June 30, is due by September 30 of each year and describes the activities undertaken by the City of Fresno during the Program Year (PY) 2015, beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016, using the following federal funds:

- Community Development Block Grant (CDBG),
- Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG),
- Home Investment Partnership (HOME), and
- Housing Opportunities for Persons With HIV/AIDS (HOPWA).

These grants fund community development efforts to improve housing, economic, and social conditions and opportunities for low-income and moderate-income residents of the City. The City funded and administered projects to address the four main goals of the Consolidated Plan. The City also supported its goals and strategies through administrative actions, including providing support to neighborhood groups and non-profits, planning and coordination of local resources and with other organizations such as the continuum of care, and through certifications of consistency. The City did not hinder the implementation of any part of the Action Plan or Consolidated Plan through action or willful inaction.

On September 7, 2016, a Public Review Draft of the report will be made available for a fifteen day review period. The Draft CAPER will be available at Fresno City Hall, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 2133 (City Clerk's Office) and Room 3070 (Housing Division); as well as at the Downtown Branch of the Fresno County Public Library and online at <u>www.fresno.gov/housing</u>. Written comments may be mailed to: City of Fresno, DARM, Attention: Crystal Smith, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 3070 Fresno California, 93721 or by e-mail to <u>crystal.smith@fresno.gov</u> by no later than September 22, 2016.

The Housing and Community Development Commission will conduct a public hearing to receive and consider public comments. The public hearing will be held September 14, 2016, at 5:00 p.m., at Fresno City Hall, 2600 Fresno Street, Second Floor, Meeting Room A. The Fresno City Council will be presented with the Draft PY 2015 CAPER for consideration and adoption on Thursday, September 22, 2016, at or about 8:30 a.m. at Fresno City Hall, Second Floor, in the Council Chambers.

The City will provide translators, upon request, and will make special accommodations for persons with disabilities at the public meetings. Persons needing these services must call (559) 621-8300, or TTY at (559) 621-8721 no later than five days prior to the meeting.

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan. 91.520(a)

Program Year 2015 (PY15) was the first year of the City's updated 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan. Tables 1 and 2 below summarize the City's accomplishments by the goals and objectives outlined in the Consolidated Plan. Some of the highlights of the program year include:

Goal 1: Safe and Affordable Housing

 Rehabilitation: A significant amount of rehabilitation work was completed during PY2015 to increase development, preserve and rehabilitate affordable housing for low-income households. See the following PY2015 highlights below:

City-wide Rehabilitation Program: Goal 20/Completed 20





Senior Paint Program: Goal 20/Completed 17, allocated funds were fully utilized for 17 projects.





Code Distressed Property Program: Goal 2/Completed 2



Completed utilizing prior year funds, the Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission, improved 19 homes through the Targeted Area Rehab Program and 2 homes through the Targeted Area Distressed Property Program for a total of 21 additional projects.

The City financed 19 home loans with the CalHome First Time Homebuyer Assistance Program using funding from the State of California Department of Housing and Community Development.

The City conducted outreach in Spanish and English for a workshop held August 19, 2015 for contractors interested in performing rehabilitation work and to learn how to become a City approved contractor as well as a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise.

 Neighborhood Revitalization Team (NRT): The NRT's focus is the improvement of housing to enable safe, affordable housing opportunities. Teams of proactive code inspectors and community coordinators focused in areas with high concentrations of substandard housing and have arrested blight by addressing 924 code violations during PY2015. Of the 924 code violations, 721 were corrected by the property owner. Coordinating resources, 8 utilized the City's rehab and code distress programs.



 City staff continues to leverage other resources to accomplish the objectives of CDBG, some of these other divisions assisting to improve conditions include solid waste, streets, parking, the graffiti team, and traditional code enforcement. In PY2015 this coordination led to increased street sweeping activities, tree trimming and removal, community clean ups, and the demolition of vacant, uninhabitable buildings. Additionally, the City continues to partner with community groups bring private resources to these same focus neighborhoods, such as Habitat for Humanity and World Changers to repair fences and paint homes.





Goal 2: Homeless Services - assistance for the homeless and those at risk of becoming homeless through Housing First collaborations.

 Emergency Solutions Grant: The City acts as pass-through agency for Emergency Solutions Grant Program funds. While the City is responsible for the administration and oversight of the grant, the majority of funds are awarded to local homeless services providers who perform the day to day operations. Based on the HMIS reports provided to the City, 104 individuals have benefitted from the City's ESG program during PY 2015.

During PY 2015 the City focused efforts on working with HUD to allocate all prior year funds. This resulted in agreements for service agencies focused on the national best practice of Housing First. The 2015 HUD Point-in-Time report shows a 37% decrease in the number of unsheltered homeless people in Fresno and surrounding areas from 2014, and a 53% decrease since 2013.

The City also worked with service agencies to provide a three-year update for the remaining three years of the Ten-Year Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness in May, 2016.

Goal 3: Community Services - assistance to low-income and special needs households.

 After School Program: The City PARCS Department operates the after school program and summer FUN Camp. These programs benefitted 1,017 children during PY2015. The afterschool program is offered at eleven locations.

- Anti-Graffiti Program: PY2015 funds were used to remove blight conditions that impair low income neighborhoods and to foster safe living environments. During PY 2015 64,317 square feet of graffiti removal occurred within RESTORE Fresno neighborhoods, an additional 996,697 square feet was removed in other CDBG eligible areas.
- Senior Hot Meals: Weekday meals and programming provided for seniors, 60 years of age and older. The program served 37,277 meals to 657 individuals (not a unique count). The program is operated at six sites, including Lafayette Neighborhood Park, Mary Ela Brown Community Center, Mosqueda Community Center, Pinedale Community Center, Senior Citizens Village and the Ted C. Wills Community Center.

Goal 4: Public Facilities and Public Improvements - Provide public facilities improvements to strengthen neighborhood revitalization.

- Neighborhood Streets Improvements: Improvements to target area infrastructure based on community input on access to schools, parks and services also leveraged other community revitalization activities during PY 2015. Some highlights include the completion of Weller/Bardell Streets, and the substantial completion of Townsend/ Heaton Streets. Shields/Dakota/Pleasant and Hughes improvements are estimated to be begin in October, 2016.
- Park Facilities Improvements: Also completed during PY2015 were thirteen projects at ten park sites including several pool assessments and upgrades to exterior lighting at the aquatics facilities. A tot lot, fields, courts, picnic tables and other items were also improved.
- Roy and Almy Reconstruction: This multi-year project to complete the reconstruction of two severely deteriorated streets with curbs, gutters, and sidewalks in a very low income neighborhood complimenting ongoing revitalization efforts including new housing construction, commercial investment and a new neighborhood park moves forward. Roy Avenue construction has been completed and work is underway to complete the cul-de-sac construction and Almy construction.



Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the consolidated plan and explain, if applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and objectives. 91.520(g)

Nearly all of the City's HOME and CDBG-funded programs are progressing and effectively addressing their stated goals in the annual and five-year goals established in the Five-Year Consolidated Plan.

Affordable Housing: Based on completion dates during PY 2015, there were six rental units that completed the construction/rehabilitation process in IDIS during PY 2015, totaling 348 total units of which 95 are HOME units. Because some HOME units (84) were reported in the PY 2014 CAPER, they have not been included in the performance totals in the PY 2015 CAPER which only reflects 11 HOME units.

Affordable Housing: The Annual Action Plan identified a goal of completing 10 lead paint projects; however, the City recently learned that it was unsuccessful in obtaining a lead paint grant that would have made this possible. The City continues pursuing other grant options and will be participating in a debriefing with HUD in October, 2016, to better understand how to improve the application process in the future.

Homelessness: Further explained during the CAPER, a project that has started slowly includes HOPWA and ESG. Due to a transition in administration of HOPWA funds, the City has experienced a delay in implementing the program. However, a contract is in place with WestCare, CA and the City anticipates successfully implementing HOPWA within HUD approved timelines. The PY 2015 ESG allocation has been contracted and is also expected to be successfully implemented within the HUD approved timeline.

Community Services and Public Facilities and Public Improvements: In some instances the actual accomplishments exceeded the anticipated goals, specifically related to projects that provided benefits for Low-Moderate Households. HUD requires data collection by *persons*, not *households* for these types of activities. An additional row has been inserted to distinguish this change from *households* to *persons assisted* in Table 1 and Table 2. Also, all anti-graffiti performance has been reported in the Community Services section to avoid the potential for double counting.

Community Services: The goals of serving 750 seniors and 1,860 youth was not fully accomplished, those benefitting represented 657 and 1,017 respectively.

Additionally, the Fresno City Council approved a Substantial Amendment to the PY2015 Annual Action Plan on May 19, 2016. This Substantial Amendment was acknowledged by HUD during PY 2016. Some notable information regarding the projects included in the Substantial Amendment is as follows:

- Funds for Housing Rehabilitation and In-fill Affordable Housing Development for Homeowners;
- Completion (final phase) of Roy and Almy Street Improvements;
- Herndontown Sewer Improvements;
- Habitat Neighborhood Buffer;
- WestCare, CA and Marjaree Mason Facility Improvements;
- Mosqueda Splash Park and learner pool rehabs at Pinedale Community Center, Quigley Neighborhood Center, Fink-White Neighborhood Center and Frank H Ball Neighborhood Center.

The following tables below summarize the City's proposed versus actual goals and lists the percent accomplished to date.

Table 1 - Accomplishments – Program Year 2015

	Goal	Category	Needs Addressed	Indicator	Unit of Measure	Funding	Goal	Actual	Percent Complete
	Safe and	6		Rental units constructed and/or rehabbed	Housing Unit	HOME	30	11	33%
1	Affordable Housing	Affordable Housing	Affordable Housing	Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated	Housing Unit	CDBG HOME	52	39	75%
				Enforcement Property Care	Cases Opened	CDBG	400	924	231%
2	Homelessness and the Prevention of Homelessness	Homeless	Homeless- ness	Public service activities (non- housing)	Persons Assisted	CDBG HOPWA ESG	97	104	107%
	Community	Non-Homeless Special Needs/	Community	Public service	Persons Assisted	CDBG	2,610	1,674	64%
3	Community Services	Mon-Housing Community	activities (non- housing)	Goal = Ho Actual = Assi		400	60,460*	15,115%	
	Public	Non-Homeless	Public	Public Facility	# Parks	CDBG	5	10	200%
4		Non-Housing	nt Pacifices and Public Improvement	Activities (non- housing)	Actual = Assi	sted	2,095	3,920	187%

*All Anti-Graffiti is being reported under Community Services (3) to avoid potential double counting.

Table 2 - Accomplishments – Strategic Plan to Date

	Goal	Category	Needs Addressed	Indicator	Unit of Measure	Fundi ng	Goal	Actual	Percent Complete
	Safe and Affordable Housing	fe and Affordable		Rental units constructed and/or rehab	Housing Unit	HOME	150	11	7%
1			Affordable Housing	Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated	Housing Unit	CDBG HOME	50	39	78%
2	Homelessness and the Prevention of Homelessness	Homeless	Homelessness	Public service activities (non-housing)	Persons Assisted	CDBG HOPW A ESG	250	104	42%
3	Community Services	Non-Homeless Special Needs & Non-Housing Community Development	Community Services	Public service activities (non-housing)	Persons Assisted	CDBG	3,000	1,674*	56%
4	Public Facilities and Public Improvements	Non-Homeless Special Needs & Non-Housing Community Development	Public Facilities and Public Improvement	Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities (non-housing)	Goal= Households Assisted Actual= Persons	CDBG	1,250	64,380*	5,150%

*All Anti-Graffiti is being reported under Community Services (3) to avoid potential double counting.

Assess how the jurisdiction's use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific objectives identified in the plan, giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified.

The City's efforts to address its priority needs, as described in the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, are summarized below.

Affordable Housing Priorities

Based on completion dates during PY 2015, there were six rental units that completed the construction/rehabilitation process in IDIS during PY 2015, totaling 348 total units of which 95 are HOME units. Because some HOME units (84) were reported in the PY 2014 CAPER, they have not been included in the performance totals in the PY 2015 CAPER which reflects 11 HOME units.

- 1. Lowell Project 112 North College: Rehabilitation of 1 HOME unit, completed on July 27, 2015.
- 2. 386 North Park: Acquisition and rehabilitation of 1 HOME unit completed on September 17, 2015.
- 3. Cedar Court/Inyo Terrace Apartments 4216 East Hamilton Avenue: This scattered site acquisition and rehabilitation was for a total of 193 units, 9 are HOME units. Completion was on November 5, 2015.

Reported in PY 2014 CAPER:

- Droge Mixed-Use Residential and Retail Project 802 Van Ness Avenue: 45 units total of acquisition and new construction, 11 are HOME units. Completion was on July 28, 2015.
- Sierra Gateway Senior Residence II 5103 North Marty Avenue: This acquisition and new construction totaled 68 units, 67 are HOME units. Completion was on July 18, 2015.
- Viking Village Apartments 4250 North Chestnut Avenue: 40 units total, 6 HOME units of acquisition and rehabilitation, completed September 18, 2015.

Housing rehabilitation and code enforcement activities have made housing more affordable by bringing hundreds of units into compliance with city standards through 20 rehabs, 17 senior paint, 2 code distressed, and 924 code enforcement actions, with 721 brought into compliance by homeowners.

Homeless Priorities

EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT (ESG or HESG): The City had experienced delays in allocating overdue, prior year HUD allocations of ESG funds. During PY 2015 the priorities focused on improving efficiencies and implementing the program. This

was done through several efforts. The City established an internal control plan, an ESG Policy and Procedure Manual that includes detailed procedures on the oversight and management of the program as well as subrecipients. The City received a position on the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care, and continues to work with the Continuum on coordination of local and national initiatives as well as allocation consultations. The City worked with HUD to award funds to subrecipients who have carried out activities within executed written agreements. While the majority of funds have already been expended, the City is anticipating and awaiting HUDs approval to draw remaining funds through HUDs IDIS system. Based on the HMIS reports provided to the City, 104 individuals have benefitted from the City's ESG program during PY 2015.

HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES FOR PERSONS WITH AIDS/HIV (HOPWA): Beginning in July 2015 the City began administering HOPWA. The HOPWA program provides several categories of services based on the following four categories of HOPWA funds: Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA); Short-term Rental Mortgage and Utilities (STRMU); Support Services, and; Housing Information Services to families with family members who have AIDS. Prior to PY2015, the State of California administered the City's HOPWA allocation. The City continues to coordinate with the State of California Department of Health and the Fresno County Department of Health to continue services and affordable housing programs for existing clients. Information regarding the HOPWA program can be found at the following webpage for the state: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/aids/Pages/tOAHOPWAsp.aspx.

The program goals for PY 2015 funds included meeting the needs of 30 households and 50 individuals using TBRA, 125 households/150 individuals using STRMU, 120 households using Supportive Services and 40 households using Housing Information Services funding. The transition to City oversight of HOPWA provided a time interval to meet the stated goals set for June 30, 2018 conclusion. The City issued a Letter of Interest requesting interest for the operation of the HOPWA program, the successful agency was WestCare, CA with an agreement for \$371,645. At the time of this report, no reporting of performance has been completed. The City will provide an update on PY 15 HOPWA outcomes in the PY 2016 CAPER.

Community Services

ANTI-GRAFFITI PROGRAM: PY2015 funds were used to remove blight conditions that impair low income neighborhoods and to foster safe living environments. Public reports of graffiti are serviced within 24 hours at a 98% rate and proactive canvassing accounts for 80% of all work accomplished. Quick response and active canvassing reassure residents of the City's commitment in providing a clean and safe environment for them. During PY 2015 64,317 square feet of graffiti removal occurred within RESTORE

Fresno neighborhoods, an additional 996,697 square feet was removed in other CDBG eligible areas, representing a service area of a population of 84,320, of which 71.7% is low mod, resulting in 60,460 individuals benefitted. Combined, this information represents well over one million square feet and 42,299 incidents of graffiti removed. The City's General Fund provided funding to remove an additional 19,699 incidents, or 428,786 square feet of graffiti in non-CDBG areas. Additionally, the Annual Action Plan goals identified the number of *households* benefitting, but HUD requires the City report the number of *persons*. Table 1 and Table 2 reflect this difference between measuring data out performance, please note that all anti-graffiti activities are reported under the Community Service goal to avoid potential duplication.

AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM: The City's Parks, After School, Recreation and Community Services (PARCS) Department received CDBG funds to operate the after school program. The after school program is designed to provide a safe and enriching environment for kids and teens to participate in recreational and service oriented activities. The after school program is offered at eleven locations and utilizes trained staff to provide various recreational activities for youth and teens. Programs provided at each site included arts and crafts, dance, drama, cooking classes, karate, fitness, holiday special events, sports leagues, homework assistance, cultural awareness, teen leadership, community outreach and nutrition. All of the participants were also able to receive a free snack or lunch (summers only) which was provided from a partnership with the Fresno Equal Opportunities Commission. During PY 2015 621 individuals benefitted from the after school program. The program is offered at the following 11 sites:

- 1. California and Elm Neighborhood Center
- 2. Dickey Youth Development Center
- 3. Einstein Neighborhood Center
- 4. Fink White Neighborhood Center
- 5. Frank H Ball Neighborhood Center
- 6. Holmes Neighborhood Center
- 7. Lafayette Neighborhood Center
- 8. Quigley Neighborhood Center
- 9. Romain Community Center
- 10. Sunset Neighborhood Center
- 11. Ted C Wills Community Center

FUN CAMP: The summer FUN Camp is a six week program for youth ages 6 – 14. This camp operates Monday through Friday and provides a variety of themed activities to help stimulate creative expression and physical fitness. Activities that are provided during the summer FUN Camp at Frank H Ball Neighborhood Center include large group games, physical fitness, nutrition, art programs, performing arts, cultural

awareness, various field trips and team building activities. Each child that participates in the camp receives lunch and a healthy snack as provided through a partnership with the Fresno EOC. During PY 2015 96 individuals benefitted from the FUN Camp.

SENIOR HOT MEALS: The City of Fresno Senior Hot Meals Program has been run and operated by the PARCS Department since 1994. The program currently operates at six sites which include the Lafayette Neighborhood Park, Mary Ella Brown Community Center, Mosqueda Community Center, Pinedale Community Center, Senior Citizens Village and the Ted C. Wills Community Center. Seniors 60 years of age and older attending the program are provided with a healthy and nutritious meal in a safe and friendly setting, which emphasizes a congregate meal environment that stresses The program utilizes volunteers who assist in meal service delivery. socialization. gardening, ceramics, sewing, billiards, and exercise programs such as water aerobics (summer) at the Mosqueda Community Center and Pinedale Community Center swimming pools. The program also provides leisure learning local trips to seniors that involve destinations such as the Fresno Chafee Zoo, the Big Fresno Fair, Forestiere Underground Gardens, and Fresno Grizzlies Games. Dance and cooking classes are provided to program participants on Saturday at the Ted C. Wills community Center once a month. Seniors who attend the program are able to meet new friends in a safe and professional setting, participate in activities and they enjoy the caring and professional PARCS staff that serves them daily. During PY 2015 the program served 37.277 meals and 657 seniors.

Public Facilities and Public Improvement

The Consolidated Plan identified public facilities and improvements in low-moderate income neighborhoods as a high priority. In particular, roadway deterioration along with access to schools and parks was highlighted as critical to livability. The City is focused on strategic investments that will enhance other private and public investment targeted to low and very-low income neighborhoods.

ANTI-GRAFFITI PROGRAM: As previously indicated, the performance measures for this program have been moved to the Community Services goal to avoid potential double counting and has accounted for the change in data collection from Low-Mod Households to Low-Mod Persons, as HUD prefers.

PARK IMPROVEMENTS: The City's PARCS Department worked on 13 projects at ten park sites. Improvements included:

1. Frank H Ball Neighborhood Center – pool assessment in progress

- 2. Mary Ella Brown Community Center pool assessment completed and upgrade of exterior lighting at aquatics facility in progress
- 3. Mosqueda Community Center pool assessment completed
- 4. Fink White Neighborhood Center pool assessment completed
- 5. Pinedale Community Center pool assessment completed, upgrade of exterior lighting at aquatics facilities in progress
- 6. Quigley Neighborhood Center pool assessment completed, upgrade of lighting controls and exterior lighting at aquatics facility in progress
- 7. Romain Community Center pool assessment completed
- 8. Holmes Neighborhood Center pool assessment completed
- 9. Sunset Neighborhood Center pool assessment completed
- 10. Chandler Park replaced tot lot including softball, resurfaced basketball courts, replaced goal posts and replaced picnic tables with concrete picnic tables. CDBG funding was leveraged with other funding sources to complete this project.

The PY 2016 CAPER will provide an update on new Parks Master Plan and Trail efforts.

STREET IMPROVEMENTS: The City's Department of Public Works made the following improvements:

- Roy and Almy (PY 2015 Roy Avenue Construction Phase Completed 08/31/15): 2,160 population (of which 85% or 1,835 people are low mod).
- Townsend and Heaton (Substantial Completion 07/21/16): 1,345 population (of which 74%, or 995 people are low mod)
- Weller and Bardell (Completed 12/18/15): 1,530 population (of which 71% or 1,090 people are low mod)
- Kearney Frontage Road Fruit to Modoc (Substantial Completion 10/01/16).
 69,632 square feet of pavement surface reconstruction.
- Clinton/Shields/Fresno/Freeway 41 (Projected Start10/15/16). 126,770 square feet of pavement surface reconstruction.
- Shields/Dakota/Pleasant/Hughes (Projected Start 10/31/16). 266,160 square feet of pavement surface reconstruction.

CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 91.520(a)

Race:	CDBG	HOME	TOTAL
White	426	145	571
Black or African American	337	42	379
Asian	52	37	89
American Indian or American Native	24	4	28
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	3	0	3
Other: Multi Racial*	792	1	793
Total	1634	229	1,863
Ethnicity:			
Hispanic	995	216	1,211
Not Hispanic	639	13	652

* Staff also tracked this data using a category titled Multi-Racial. This category does not exist on HUDs IDIS screen for input. All Multi-Racial data above will be reported on the CAPER, but when entering into the IDIS system, it will be included in the "white" column.

Activity Group	CDBG Eligibility Category	Actual	Unit of Measure
	Direct Homeownership Assistance (13)	0	Households
Housing	Rehab; Single-Unit Residential (14A)	19	Housing Units
Public Facilities and Improvements	Parks, Recreational Facilities (03F)	10	Public Facility
	Senior Services (05A)	657	Persons
Public Services	Legal Services (05C)	0	Persons
	Youth Services (05D)	1,017	Persons
	Child Care Services (05L)	0	Persons

CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a)

Identify the resources made available during the program year.

The following table represents amounts reported through the HUD IDIS software only, it is important to note that the City of Fresno in some instances has expended funds, but the draws have not yet occurred in IDIS.

Source of Funds	Source	Expected Amount Available	Actual Amount Expended*				
CDBG	Federal	6,614,841.64	2,161,287.97*				
HOME	Federal	1,932,435.81	-				
ESG*	Federal	2,059,850	474,116.71**				
ESG Match	Private	-	-				
HOME Match	Private	-	-				
HOPWA		733,139	-				
Amount Expended i	Amount Expended includes funds from previous allocations expended in the program						

Table 4 – Resources Made Available

*CDBG Expenditures to date for City Wide Rehab is an additional \$1,200,575 that has been expended by the City, but not yet drawn and reflected on HUDs IDIS reporting. **ESG Federal funds totaling \$2,614,852 was funded to the City for PY 2011 through PY 2015. The City previously drew \$334,282.84 from HUD. HUD IDIS reports Indicate than an additional \$474,116.71 has been drawn during PY 2015, leaving \$1,806,452.45 available to be drawn from IDIS. It is important to note what the City has reimbursed the subrecipients, and what has been drawn from HUDs IDIS differ. The City has issued payment to subrecipients for the majority of those funds and is currently awaiting HUD approval to complete draws on the remaining balance for all but current PY 2014 and PY 2015 activities. The remaining PY 2014 and PY 2015 funds are allocated through subrecipient agreements and expected to be fully implemented within HUD approved timelines.

Program Income Received and Loans Outstanding

The City received \$685,697.79 in HOME program income and \$209,465.51 in CDBG program income during the program year. All income was generated from loan repayments and miscellaneous revenue.

The City of Fresno has 1,088 outstanding loans (CDBG, HOME and RRP). The outstanding balance is \$52,693,346. The balance includes loans that may be forgiven at maturity date, if the borrower meets loan requirements. Loan terms include; forgivable, deferred, and repayment loans with or without interest. The City of Fresno has not written off any loans for this reporting period.

Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments.

A map representing the geographic distribution and location of investments will be developed and placed in this section.

Table 5 – Identify	the geographic	distribution and	location of investments
--------------------	----------------	------------------	-------------------------

Target Area	Planned Percentage of Allocation	Actual Percentage of Allocation	Narrative Description
CITYWIDE	100%	100%	CDBG Eligible Areas

Leveraging

The Housing and Community Development Division's New Construction and Major Rehabilitation Program is highly successful in leveraging HOME funds through use of Low Income Housing Tax Credit equity, bank loans, bonds, and other public and private sources. In addition to federal funds, the City of Fresno maintains tax exempt bond authority to finance multi-family affordable rental housing. During the 2015-2016 program year, the Division leveraged \$222,739 in private funds with \$200,000 in HOME funds through the Habitat Lotus/Effie Project and leveraged \$7,162,663 in other federal funds, tax credits, partnership contribution and deferred developer fee with \$1.2 million in HOME funds through the Housing Authority's Lowell Neighborhood Scattered Site Project.

The City did not utilize any publicly owned land or property to address the needs identified in the plan.

The City's PY 2014 HESG allocation totaled \$559,850. The City is required to match each dollar of ESG funds with other funds that will be used for ESG-eligible activities. The City of Fresno passes this matching requirement to the service providers receiving the ESG funds. ESG providers meet this requirement through the use of private donations, state grants, and other categories such as volunteer hours. Below is a summary of the types of match generated by the ESG subrecipients, this total does not reflect the additional resources that the City and the McKinney Vento funding provided during PY 2015.

Subrecipients	Match
Local Government	\$63,000
Private Funds	\$179,866

Other Federal (non-ESG)	\$254,082
State Government	\$75,000
Other including in-kind	\$117,503
Fees	0
Program Income	0
Total Match Amount	\$689,451

Table 6 – Fiscal Year Summary - HOME Match Report

The City of Fresno received a 100% match reduction for Federal Fiscal Years 2014, 2015 and 2016. The City did not need to generate match for HOME project costs, however, a match log has been maintained because match credit not used can carry forward to the next year.

Fiscal Year Summary – HOME Match					
1. Excess match from prior Federal fiscal year	\$6,108,074				
2. Match contributed during current Federal fiscal year	\$3,520				
3. Total match available for current Federal fiscal year (Line 1 plus Line 2)	\$6,111,594				
4. Match liability for current Federal fiscal year	\$0				
5. Excess match carried over to next Federal fiscal year (Line 3 minus Line 4)	\$6,111,594				

Table 7 – Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year

	Match	Contribut	ion for	the Fec	leral Fiscal	Year		
Project No. or Other ID	Date of Contributi on	Cash (non- Federal sources)	Foreg one Taxes , Fees, Charg es	Appra ised Land/ Real Prope rty	Required Infra- structure	Site Prep, Construc tion Materials, Donated labor	Bon d Fina ncin g	Total Matc h
Rental Rehabilitation Program	6/30/2016	3,217						3,217
Housing Development Projects	6/30/2016		303					303
Owner Occupied Rehabilitation Projects	6/30/2016							

HOME MBE/WBE Report

Program Income – Enter the program amounts for the reporting period							
Balance on hand at beginning of reporting period		Amount received during reporting period	Total amount expended during reporting period	Amount expended for TBRA	Balance on hand at end of reporting period		
CDBG	335,198.64	117,262.08	335,198.64	N/A	117,262.08		
HOME	0	685,697.79	685,697.79	70,957.76	0		

 Table 8 – Program Income

Minority Business Enterprises and Women Business Enterprises – Indicate the number and dollar value of contracts for HOME projects completed during the reporting period

	Total	Mir	nority Busin	ess Enterpri	ses	White
		Alaskan Native or American Indian	Asian or Pacific Islander	Black Non- Hispanic	Hispanic	Non- Hispanic (Includes Multi- Racial)
Contracts						
Number	20	0	3	0	1	16
Dollar	1,167,180		193,777		62,450	910,953
Amount						
Sub-Contra	acts					
Number	49				5	44
Dollar	3,315,081					2,559,248
Amount						
	Total	Women Business Enterpris es	Male			
Contracts						
Number	20	0	20			
Dollar Amount	1,167,180		1,167,180			

Sub-Contracts					
Number	49	2	47		
Dollar	3,315,081	23,716	3,291,365		
Amount					

Table 9 – Minority Business and Women Business Enterprises

The City's HOME funds were not used on any rental properties; therefore the table below does not contain any information.

Minority Owners of Rental Property – Indicate the number of HOME assisted rental property owners and the total amount of HOME funds in these rental properties assisted

	Total	Minority Property Owners				White
		Alaskan Native or American Indian	Asian or Pacific Islander	Black Non- Hispanic	Hispanic	Non- Hispanic
Number	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-
Dollar	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-
Amount						

 Table 10 – Minority Owners of Rental Property

The City did not displace any households, businesses, or organizations in the program year. Units that the City acquired were sold voluntarily and vacant when purchased.

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition – Indicate the number of persons					
displaced, the cost of relocation payments, the number of parcels acquired, and the					
cost of acquisition	cost of acquisition				
Parcels Acquired 4 1,030,000					
Businesses Displaced -00-					
Nonprofit Organizations Displaced -00-					
Households Temporarily Relocated, -00-					
not Displaced					

Households Displaced	Tot al	Minor Alaskan Native or American Indian	ity Property Asian or Pacific Islander	Enterprises Black Non- Hispanic	s Hispanic	White Non- Hispanic
Number		-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-
Cost	-0-					

 Table 11 – Relocation and Real Property Acquisition

CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b)

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, including the number and types of families served, the number of extremely low-income, low-income, moderate-income, and middle-income persons served.

	One-Year Goal	Actual
Number of homeless households to be provided affordable housing units	50	-
Number of non-homeless households to be provided affordable housing units	54	_
Number of special-needs households to be provided affordable housing units*	47	-
Total	151	-

Table 12 – Number of Households

	One-Year Goal	Actual		
Number of households supported through rental assistance	97	83		
Number of households supported through the production of new units*	2	-		
Number of households supported through the rehab of existing units	52	39		
Number of households supported through the acquisition of existing units	0	0		
Total	151	122		
* Note: Includes Acquisition/Rehab				

Table 13 – Number of Households Supported

Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting these goals.

LEAD PAINT: The Annual Action Plan identified a goal of completing 10 lead paint projects; however, the City recently learned that it was unsuccessful in obtaining a lead paint grant that would have made this possible. The City continues pursuing other grant options and will be participating in a debriefing with HUD in October, 2016, to better understand how to improve the application process in the future.

TBRA: The subrecipient, Fresno Housing Authority, has indicated that the Fair Market Rate guidelines for affordable rental housing and income limitations, especially for the working poor, has impediments to qualifying for rental assistance. Additionally, the majority of the population being served with TBRA funds could also benefit from additional case management services that are not part of the TBRA program. With these two problems encountered, it has been challenging to meet the goal of serving 97 individuals. Although these issues have been challenging, they have not been insurmountable and 83 individuals have benefitted from this program.

Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans.

TBRA – With the need for rental assistance still rising, and household income requirements moving upward, future annual action plans will take into consideration how to allocate TBRA funds. However, it is anticipated that the subrecipient, the Fresno Housing Authority, will be able to identify clients and appropriately expend allocated funding, and continue offering this critical service in the Fresno community.

Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons served by each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine the eligibility of the activity.

Number of Persons Served	CDBG Actual	HOME Actual
Extremely Low-income	848	190
Low-income	128	23
Moderate-income	54	16
Non-Low/Mod (PARCS)	6	-
Total	1,036	229

Table 14 – Number of Persons Served

Number of households served that meet Section 215 Requirements:

The City-wide Rehab program completed 20 units of housing using HOME funds. All units met the Section 215 requirements.

By definition, households that have "worst case needs" are renter households with the following characteristics:

- incomes less than 50% of the area median income;
- do not receive federal housing assistance; and
- pay more than half of their income on housing (including rent and utilities); or
- live in severely inadequate housing with one or more serious physical problems related to heating, plumbing, and electrical systems or maintenance.

CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c) Evaluate the jurisdiction's progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending homelessness through:

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual needs

The City continues to participate with a group of community members to collectively confront mental health and homelessness system issues. Recognizing that coordination and adequately leveraging resources, these *Community Conversations* assisted in the creation of a physical entry point for those in need. In February 2015 the Multi-agency Access Program (MAP) Point at the Poverello House (Pov) was opened with the goal of providing "the right care, the first time" and currently serves as a physical location for Fresno's coordinated entry system serving those in need. A new *Coordinated Entry System* utilizes a standard intake and assessment tool and links vulnerable individuals needing assistance to a multitude of social services, including mental health, substance abuse treatment, and housing.

In addition to the development of a physical location, street outreach efforts for unsheltered persons have also been improved. Several supportive services agencies began working to coordinate a street outreach team for several hours each week. The outreach team was tasked with locating new and existing individuals would then be navigated through the existing coordinated entry system. Beginning in April 2015, the focus was to make contact with homeless individuals, build relationships, conduct assessments and assist with documentation needed to access available services.

Service agencies and volunteers organize on a nearly annual basis to conduct a "Pointin-Time Count." The City continues to support this effort. The 2015 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Point-in-Time report shows a 37% decrease in the number of unsheltered homeless people in Fresno and surrounding areas from 2014, and a 53% decrease since 2013.

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons.

Project Unite: A collaborative effort among several services agencies, Project Unite addresses emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons through WestCare, CA, the Poverello House, Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission, and Turning Point. Through Turning Point's Bridge Point program, there are 30 beds available for emergency shelter to those homeless individuals who are awaiting placement in permanent housing.

Marjaree Mason Center: the Marjaree Mason Center operates three confidentially located Safe Houses for victims of domestic violence.

Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission: The City provided General Funds during PY2015 to support the youth sanctuary

Poverello House: The City provided General Funds during PY2015 to support efforts to shelter families identified through the Coordinated Entry System for a hotel/motel voucher pilot program.

Veteran Housing Resources: HUD-VA Supportive Housing (VASH) Program is a joint effort between the Department of Housing and Urban Development and VA. HUD allocated nearly 38,000 "Housing Choice" Section 8 vouchers across the country. These vouchers allow Veterans and their families to live in market rate rental units while VA provides case management services. A housing subsidy is paid to the landlord on behalf of the participating Veteran. The Veteran then pays the difference between the actual rent charged by the landlord and the amount subsidized by the program.

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming homeless again.

Permanent needs of homeless persons are addressed through the following activities funded with Emergency Solutions Grant funds; a portion of the subrecipient contracts listed below address these efforts.

The City of Fresno contracted subrecipients provided Emergency Shelter, Rapid Rehousing and Homeless Prevention Services per HUD 24 CFR 576 guidelines. The focus of "shelter first" to provide adequate and proper shelter for those identified as homeless was undertaken using ESG funding through local programs such as Project Unite, Hero's Outreach and Sanctuary Transition for Homeless Youth and the Homeless Due to Fleeing Domestic Violence.

Contracted subrecipients include:

- WestCare, CA Project Unite (Joint effort with Poverello House and Turning Point)
- Fresno Economic Opportunity Commission Sanctuary Transition for Homeless Youth
- Marjaree Mason Center Homeless Due to Fleeing Domestic Violence
- Poverello House, Inc. MAP Point Homeless Families

Through Fresno Madera Continuum of Care service agencies utilize the Coordinated Access System in addition to the Homeless Management Information System, and have embraced the "housing-first" model identified as a national best practice for helping homeless persons make the transition to permanent housing and independent living. Service agencies continue to improve upon standard their standard intake and assessment process and identify both short and long-term goals through several local and national initiatives.

The City continues to support this work. It is important for members of the public to remember that it often takes multiple contacts with homeless individuals before they eventually access available services.

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-income individuals and families and those who are: likely to become homeless after being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); and, receiving assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs. The City has no formal homeless discharge coordination policy in place. During PY2015 the City, through the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care, continued to support and coordinate with a number of community organizations and governmental agencies that actively engage in planning and implementing discharge plans and protocols that address the needs of individuals at risk of becoming homeless after receiving services. These individuals include youth gaining out of foster care, homeless individuals who are frequent users of health care or mental health services, and individuals leaving county correctional facilities who have special needs and need assistance with transitioning to mainstream society. Members of the Continuum of Care work together to coordinate their efforts and build a community of agencies that provides supportive and preventative services to these individuals at high risk of homelessness after release.

CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j) Actions taken to address the needs of public housing

The City works closely with the Fresno Housing Authority, a key partner in the City's efforts to address safe and affordable housing. The Housing Authority is considered well managed by HUD and does not have the 'troubled' designation.

During the program year, the City met with Housing Authority staff regarding several complex topics, including the point in time count, increasing landlords for rental to populations in need, preserving housing stock, rental inspections and coordination of efforts in dealing with problem property owners.

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participate in homeownership

The City's Development and Resource Management Department staff continues to partner with the Fresno Housing Authority to coordinate services and program delivery for families of low and moderate income. Both agencies are involved with the collaborative efforts such as the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care and Community Conversations.

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs

The Fresno Housing Authority is not considered troubled.

CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j)

In December 2015 the City adopted a new Development Code replacing a fifty year old ordinance. The new Development Code provides incentives for affordable housing

including density bonuses and parking reductions. In February 2016, the City brought every parcel into compliance with the General Plan land use map by rezoning the entire city. This provides land use entitlements to allow for higher density and more affordable development by right without requiring Conditional Use Permits. Additionally, the City Council adopted a series of impact fee waiver programs for affordable housing and commercial investments in neighborhoods with high concentrations of low income households. The combination of land use policy and incentive programs allows for development of affordable housing to occur without barriers.

Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

As part of the Consolidated Plan, the City identified several obstacles to meeting needs that are particularly difficult to meet in the City of Fresno. Below are some of the identified obstacles and actions the City is taking to overcome the obstacles:

The City of Fresno leverages all available resources for the production and preservation of affordable and special needs housing. Most new affordable housing developments are highly leveraged with low income housing tax credit equity. During this program period the Housing and Community Development Division was able to leverage the Lowell Neighborhood project with a ratio of 1:14 utilizing HOME funds.

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

All of the City's federally-funded housing programs are designed to comply with the lead paint requirements of 24 CFR Part 35. Most of the CDBG-funded housing activities require lead safe work practices. The HOME-funded rehabilitation, based on the amount of rehabilitation required to bring the unit up to code, required abatement.

Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

As outlined in the Consolidated Plan, the City's approach to alleviate poverty will be to engage in several activities with the intent of sustaining adequate level of services while promoting self-sufficiency.

Activities undertaken by the City of Fresno utilizing CDBG, HOME, ESG, and HOPWA funds are all efforts to reduce poverty and improve the quality of life for residents. Programs that directly reduce poverty include economic development and tenant-based rental assistance. The City of Fresno's ESG and HOPWA funds provide direct assistance to homeless individuals or those at risk of becoming homeless. Housing and Community Development Division projects and programs that indirectly affect poverty include owner-occupied rehabilitation, targeted area rehabilitation, new construction and

major rehabilitation of existing apartments. In addition, CDBG funds are used for senior meals and other type of services activities.

Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) and actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

The City's Department of Development and Resource Management (DARM) is the lead agency in the administration of the Consolidated Plan. Throughout the year, the Department coordinated with other city departments, community development agencies and non-profits serving the community to best serve the needs of its residents. These organizations include the local Continuum of Care and the Fresno Housing Authority.

The Department constantly engages the community in an effort to build new partnerships with local non-profits, faith-based groups, for-profits, and other governmental institutions. Efforts include neighborhood meetings, meetings with local businesses and community based organizations, and special events.

The Department's staff also strengthens existing relationships with non-profits through monitoring and technical assistance. The Department's monitoring efforts are described in more detail below:

- Worked with private, public, and non-profit housing developers to expand the supply and availability of affordable housing.
- Participated on the Fresno Continuum of Care Committee to address homelessness.
- Implementation of the 2015-2023 Housing Element.
- Work with affordable housing developers to ensure that developments include community facilities in order to provide resident services (computer labs, job application training, senior services, meals, etc.).
- Worked with participants in the establishment of goals and objectives of the Consolidated Plan to ensure measurable progress is being made.
- Continued to implement the State-funded CalHome Program for those firsttime homebuyers seeking mortgage assistance.

On April 28, 2016, the Fresno City Council adopted its 2015-2023 Housing Element which included several meetings with housing stakeholders. In addition to 9 community workshops held in public schools and the Center for New Americans in October and November of 2015, the first public draft of the Housing Element (January 2016) was presented to the Housing and Community Development Commission, Disability

Advisory Commission, Airport Land Use Commission, Planning Commission and City Council during January and February of 2016. Also during this time, the Council District Plan Implementation Committees and Design Review Committees reviewed the document twice. Both the first Public Draft (January 2016) and the Revised Draft (March 2016) were released broadly to the public through newspaper notices, emails to a list of over 500 stakeholders and community workshop participants, posting on the City's website, and dissemination through the Fresno libraries. The Housing Element outlines the land use policies for future affordable housing within the city limits.

Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the jurisdictions analysis of impediments to fair housing choice. 91.520(a)

The City of Fresno updated its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice Report (AI) in May, 2016, the end of PY 2015. The updated AI identified four (4) primary impediments and local fair housing issues. For more detailed information, a copy of the AI can be obtained from the City's Department of Development and Resource Management, at 2600 Fresno Street, Fresno California.

Private Sector Impediments:

#1: Black and Hispanic home purchase loan applicants have been denied home purchase loans at a higher rate than white or non-Hispanic residents.

#2: Failure to make reasonable modification or accommodation.

#3: Relatively low levels of private investment in racial/ethnic minority neighborhoods and areas with comparatively high poverty rates.

#4: Low use of available fair housing resources/infrastructure.

Public Sector Impediments:

#1: Persistence of concentrated areas of poverty with disproportionate shares of racial/ethnic minorities.

#2: Concentration of assisted housing in concentrated areas of poverty with relatively high concentrations of racial/ethnic minority residents.

#3: Need to promote active public participation and involvement on issues impacting city residents.

#4: Lack of use of the state fair housing system.

The AI identified actions to be taken in order to address and alleviate the identified impediments. The City's efforts to carry them out will be included in the PY2016 CAPER. Below is a summary of each proposed action:

Private Sector Impediment #1. Black and Hispanic home purchase loan applicants have been denied home purchase loans at a higher rate than white or non-Hispanic residents.

Proposed Actions:

- Convene a panel of banks and advocacy organizations, such as the Greenlining Coalition, to develop recommendations on how to promote lending in areas with relatively high concentrations of racial/ethnic minority residents. Action will be documented with the record and recommendation of panel meetings.
- Promote credit and personal finance education among area high school students, focusing on the effective use of consumer debt and methods to build and maintain good credit. Action will be measured by the number of credit counseling classes held in city high schools and civic organizations, and the number of participating schools, students, and local organizations.
- Continue to explore opportunities for potential partnerships with non-profit entities to support the development of a land bank or community land trust to acquire properties for rehabilitation and/or development of affordable and mixed-income housing (Housing Element: Housing Plan Objective H2, Program 5). Action will be documented by record of discussions with non-profit entities and the identification of opportunities for potential partnerships

Program Year Actions: The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

Private Sector Impediment #2. Failure to make reasonable modification or accommodation.

Proposed Actions:

- Action 2.1: Conduct outreach and education to area landlords, in partnership with local and state organizations such as the California Apartment Association, relating to reasonable accommodation requirements under the Fair Housing Act, Americans with Disabilities Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, and other related legislation.
- Measurable Objective 2.1: Number of outreach and education sessions offered, number of participating organizations, and number of participating

landlords/property managers. Action 2.2: Include information relating to reasonable accommodation, and fair housing more generally, among licensing materials for new landlords. Measurable Objective 2.2: The development and inclusion of new materials to be included in licensing documents.

- Action 2.3: Conduct accessibility audits among newly constructed multifamily housing units in partnership with the Fair Housing Council of Central California. Measurable Objective 2.3: The number of audit tests conducted and the results of those tests.
- Action 2.4: Promote the provision of disabled-accessible units and housing for persons with mental and physical disabilities (Housing Element: Housing Plan Policy H- 5-d). Measurable Objective 2.4: Efforts and policies to promote the provision of disabled accessible units.
- Action 2.5: Accommodate persons with disabilities who seek reasonable waiver or modification of land use controls and/or development standards pursuant to procedures and criteria set forth in the Development Code (Housing Element: Housing Plan Policy H-5-t). Measurable Objective 2.5: Record of permitted accommodations of land-use controls and/or development standards.

Program Year Actions: The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

Private Sector Impediment #3. Relatively low levels of private investment in racial/ethnic minority neighborhoods and areas with comparatively high poverty rates.

Proposed Actions:

- Action 3.1: Consider funding, matching funds, training programs and Section 3 opportunities for small business loan investment and to prepare small businesses for loans. Measurable Objective 3.1: The amount of funding dedicated to investment in small business and Section 3 training opportunities, and the amount of private sector investment supported or facilitated by those public investments.
- Action 3.2: Continue to explore development of a Transit Oriented Affordable Housing Loan Fund, which could pool local, state, federal, and private Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) sources to support mixed-income housing (Housing Element: Housing Plan Program 5). Measurable Objective 3.2: Record of discussions and actions taken to explore development of Transit Oriented Affordable Housing Loan Fund.

Program Year Actions: The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

Private Sector Impediment #4. Low use of available fair housing resources/infrastructure.

Proposed Actions:

- Action 4.1: Include a web page on the city website detailing the rights and responsibilities of city residents under federal and state fair housing law, and hyperlinks to a variety of fair housing resources, including complaint forms for HUD and the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing. Measurable Objective 4.1: The inclusion of the web-link and number of visits and the click-through rate104 of visitors who access any of the links included on the web page.
- Action 4.2: Use CDBG to fund specific Fair Housing education and outreach in areas of concentration. Measurable Objective 4.2: The amount of CDBG funding dedicated to Fair Housing outreach and education, the number of training sessions, and the number of participants in those training sessions.
- Action 4.3: Through continuing contract with the Fair Housing Council of Central California, provide fair housing services that include advertising fair housing laws and complaint procedures in multiple languages through literature displays at City and County offices and through local non-profit groups (Housing Element: Housing Plan Program 25). Measurable Objective 4.3: Continuing contract with the Fair Housing Council and a record of marketing efforts to promote broader awareness of fair housing laws and complaint procedures.

Program Year Actions: The City anticipates launching a revised website during PY2016. During PY2015 the City initiated discussions with the Fair Housing Council of Central California and a contract will be executed during PY2016. The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

Public Sector Impediment #1. Persistence of concentrated areas of poverty with disproportionate shares of racial/ethnic minorities.

Proposed Actions:

• Action 1.1: Expanding upon Private Sector Action 3.1 above, identify methods by which CDBG funding may be used to promote investment and leverage lending in areas of the city with high poverty and high concentrations of racial/ethnic minority residents in 2000 and 2010-2014. Measurable Objective 1.1: The

amount of lending that is generated, facilitated, or supported by funding in areas with high concentrations of poverty and racial/ethnic minority residents.

- Action 1.2: Expand or reallocate CDBG funding for infrastructural improvements, public works projects, and housing rehabilitation/preservation, focusing on areas of poverty and high concentrations of minority residents. Measurable Objective 1.2: The amount of new or additional CDBG funding designated for improvements to infrastructure, public works projects, and housing rehabilitation/preservation in areas of poverty and high concentrations of minority residents.
- Action 1.3: Pursue the creation of enhanced infrastructure financing districts (EIFD) in distressed areas around the city center, with the goal of securing additional redevelopment funding for those areas. Measurable Objective 1.3: The designation of EIFDs and the amount of funding allocated for redevelopment of existing housing units as affordable housing.
- Action 1.4: Advocate and facilitate the conservation and rehabilitation of substandard residential properties by homeowners and landlords (Housing Element: Housing Plan Policy H-4-b). Measurable Objective 1.4: Policies and actions designed to facilitate conservation and rehabilitation of substandard housing.
- Action 1.5: Continue to facilitate access to rehabilitation programs that provide financial and technical assistance to low- and moderate-income households for the repair and rehabilitation of existing housing with substandard conditions (Housing Element: Housing Plan Policy H-4-e). Measurable Objective 1.5: Policies and actions designed to facilitate access to rehabilitation programs.

Program Year Actions: The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

Public Sector Impediment #2. Concentration of assisted housing in concentrated areas of poverty with relatively high concentrations of racial/ethnic minority residents.

Proposed Actions:

 Action 2.1: Open a dialogue with affordable housing developers to identify barriers to entry for construction outside of areas in which affordable units are currently concentrated. Measurable Objective 2. 1. 1: The record of dialogue between the City and affordable housing developers. Measurable Objective 2. 7.2: Identify resources to bridge the gap for developers of affordable housing units who face barriers to entry in neighborhoods with relatively low concentrations of affordable housing.

- Action 2.2: Encourage the Fresno Housing Authority to provide mobility counseling to voucher recipients. Measurable Objective 2.2: The number of voucher recipients who have been provided mobility counseling.
- Action 2.3: Actively pursue funding to assist in the development, preservation, and rehabilitation of any existing housing type with a particular emphasis on the development of mixed-income neighborhoods (Housing Element: Housing Plan Program 5). Measurable Objective 2.3: Policies and actions designed to secure funding for development, preservation, and rehabilitation of housing with an emphasis on developing mixed-income neighborhoods.
- Action 2.4: Ensure that all development applications are considered, reviewed, and approved without prejudice to the proposed residents (Housing Element: Housing Plan Policy H-5-e). Measurable Objective 2.4: Efforts and policies designed to ensure equitable processing of development applications.

Program Year Actions: The Fresno Housing Authority has reported employing a mobility counselor. The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

Public Sector Impediment #3. Need to promote active public participation and involvement on issues impacting city residents.

Proposed Actions:

- Establish an initiative, in partnership with local organizations and advocacy groups, to identify ways to promote public participation in housing and community development planning. Such organizations may include Stone Soup, the Center for New Americans, and the school districts, among others. Train agencies on City resources so they can hold additional public input sessions.
- Create a "meeting in a box" that will allow agencies to hold meetings at different times and locations and provide feedback to City. Action will be documented through the development of meeting materials and logistics.
- Through continuing contract with the Fair Housing Council of Central California (FHCCC) and collaboration with the State Department of Fair Employment and Housing, disseminate fair housing information through city events, workshops, and local media (Housing Element: Housing Plan Program 25). Action will be documented through continued contract with the FHCCC and a record of marketing and public outreach efforts.

Program Year Actions: The City continues to lead collaborative efforts like the Building Neighborhood Capacity Program, and RESTORE Fresno a compilation of initiatives aimed at improving property values, living conditions, public safety and the overall quality of life in older neighborhoods. The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

Public Sector Impediment #4. Lack of use of the state fair housing system.

Proposed Actions:

- Include a web page on the city website detailing the rights and responsibilities of city residents under federal and state fair housing law, and hyperlinks to a variety of fair housing resources, including complaint forms for HUD and the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing. Action will be measured by inclusion of the web-link and number of visits and the click-through rate of visitors who access any of the links included on the web page.
- Include data-sharing provisions in future contracts with the Fair Housing Council to receive fair housing complaints and testing data. Action will be measured by the revision of contracts with the Fair Housing Council for the purposes of receiving and managing fair housing data.
- Open a dialogue with the Fair Housing Council. The purposes of this dialogue would be to share the results of the current AI study and to identify ways in which the city can collaborate with the Council on addressing the impediments included in the study. Actions include revision of the City's contract to include areas of collaboration between the two on addressing impediments identified in the study.
- Through continuing contract with the Fair Housing Council of Central California, provide fair housing services that include advertising fair housing laws and complaint procedures in multiple languages through literature displays at City and County offices and through local non-profit groups (Housing Element: Housing Plan Program 25). Action will be documented through continued contractual relationships with the Fair Housing Council and a record of marketing efforts to promote broader awareness of fair housing laws and complaint procedures.

Program Year Actions: The City anticipates launching a revised website during PY2016. During PY2015 the City initiated discussions with the Fair Housing Council of Central California and a contract will be executed during PY2016. The City will report additional actions in the PY2016 CAPER.

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230

Description of the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning requirements.

The City's Department of Development and Resource Management (DARM) is the lead agency for monitoring compliance for the CDBG, HOME, HOPWA and ESG Programs. The Department has established procedures for monitoring of program activities. These procedures mandate compliance and timely implementation of the projects by all subrecipients. The Department's staff will rely on HUD monitoring handbooks, guidelines, and technical assistance publications to ensure funded programs are in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations.

The Department's monitoring ranges from screening applicants for income eligibility, accounting procedures, to on-site inspections for funded agencies. The City reviews these reports on a regular basis and provides technical assistance where needed to assure compliance.

The City's minority business outreach efforts are discussed in the HOME-specific section of this report.

Project	Last Monitored
330 Van Ness	1/15/16
Arbor Court	4/1/16
Bridges at Florence	2/5/16
Brierwood Court	6/10/16
Cedar Court/Inyo Terrace	1/5/16
Droge	1/27/16
Echo Rehab	9/18/15
Geneva Village	12/4/15
Iron Bird Lofts	5/20/16
MLK Square	1/8/16
Oak Park Senior Villas	10/10/15
Parc Grove Commons	5/13/16
PGCNW	5/13/16
Plaza Mendoza	7/22/16

Monitoring Schedule and Results:

12/21/15
12/18/15
1/5/16
1/5/16
8/26/16
8/26/16
8/18/14
7/18/16
7/1/16
3/25/16

 Tanager Springs I has not received its IRS low income housing tax credit letter form 8609. Staff continues to pursue this form each year at the annual monitoring.

- Geneva Village risk assessment was reduced from High to Low. The property is now turning over units and has paid its second residual receipts payment to the City of Fresno to begin paying down its HOME loan.
- Brierwood Courts risk assessment was reduced from High to Medium. During the program year, the owners made substantial capital improvement to the property. Although the property does not cash flow, the City of Fresno HOME loan to the property is a forgivable loan.
- Martin Luther King Square remains High risk. There have been several management changes to the complex and some of the units inspected required major repair/housekeeping, etc. If a unit does not meet health and safety standards, staff is requiring the owner to bring the unit into compliance.

Describe efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on performance reports. 91.105(d); 91.115(d)

On September 7, 2016, the City of Fresno will make available a Public Review Draft of the report for a fifteen day review period. In addition, the City utilized an email distribution list of approximately 500 interested individuals to share the Public Review Draft PY 2015 CAPER and advise of the comment and community engagement process. The email distribution list contains approximately five-hundred email addresses that range from residents, to community based organizations and public/private agencies, all encouraged to share the information with their networks as well.

The report will be available at Fresno City Hall, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 2133 (City Clerk's Office) and Room 3070 (Housing Division); as well as at the Downtown Branch of the Fresno County Public Library and online at <u>www.fresno.gov/housing</u>. Written

comments may be mailed to: City of Fresno, DARM, Attention: Crystal Smith, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 3070 Fresno California, 93721 or by e-mail to <u>crystal.smith@fresno.gov</u>. Written comments must be received no later than September 21, 2016.

The Housing and Community Development Commission will conduct a public hearing to receive and consider public comments. The public hearing will be held September 14, 2016, at 5:00 p.m., at Fresno City Hall, 2600 Fresno Street, Second Floor, Meeting Room A. The Fresno City Council will consider and be presented with the CAPER for adoption on Thursday, September 22, 2016, at or about 8:30 a.m. at Fresno City Hall, Second Floor, in the Council Chambers.

The City will provide translators, upon request, and will make special accommodations for persons with disabilities at the public meetings. Persons needing these services must call (559) 621-8300, or TTY at (559) 621-8721 no later than five days prior to the meeting.

Public Comments

At the time of printing this draft, no public comments have been received. Public comments received during the review period will be incorporated into the final report as applicable. Additionally, public comments will be provided to HUD with the final PY 2015 CAPER.

CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c)

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction's program objectives and indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its experiences.

Program Year 2015 represents the first year of the City's updated Consolidated Plan. The updated plan outlines the City's strategies for the program years 2015 through 2019. There have been no major changes in the City's objectives since the development of the plan.

However, the City identified CDBG funds from previous allocations available for reprogramming and processed a substantial amendment to budget these additional funds. All additional funds were programmed in accordance with the priorities, goals, and objectives outlined in the original plan.

The City certifies that

 the City provided certifications of consistency in a fair and impartial manner;

- the City did not hinder ConPlan implementation by action or willful inaction;
- pursued all resources described in the ConPlan; and
- all CDBG funds used went toward meeting a national objective. The City spent 100% of its CDBG program funds (not including administrative and loan payments) on activities that met a low- and moderate-income national objective.

Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) grants? If so, describe accomplishments and program outcomes during the last year.

No

For activities meeting the Low/Mod Job (LMJ) national objective, please provide the following information:

- A description of actions taken by the city and businesses to ensure first consideration for jobs was given to low/mod persons;
- A listing by job title of all the permanent jobs created/retained and those that were made available to low/mod persons; and
- If any jobs required special skills, what steps were taken to provide training, experience, or education for low/mod persons.

The City did not utilize Federal Entitlement funds on any job creation activities within PY 2015. However, using general funds, the City's PARCS Department conducted a job fair and Youth Summer Jobs Initiative. Additionally, the City created the Youth Advisory Commission in PY 2015.

CR-50 - HOME 91.520(d)

Include the results of on-site inspections of affordable rental housing assisted under the program to determine compliance with housing codes and other applicable regulations.

Projects completed during the program year received on-going on-site inspections during the construction period and a final on-site inspection at conclusion of construction to ensure compliance with housing and neighborhood standards. In addition, the general contractor provided weekly on-site inspections of the progress and any issues that required resolution. Projects also received a Certification of Occupancy from the City's Planning Department indicating that the project complied with all the plans and specifications and passed City inspection prior to occupancy.

Project	Last Monitored
330 Van Ness	1/15/16
Arbor Court	4/1/16
Bridges at Florence	2/5/16
Brierwood Court	6/10/16
Cedar Court/Inyo Terrace	1/5/16
Droge	1/27/16
Echo Rehab	9/18/15
Geneva Village	12/4/15
Iron Bird Lofts	5/20/16
MLK Square	1/8/16
Oak Park Senior Villas	10/10/15
Parc Grove Commons	5/13/16
PGCNW	5/13/16
Plaza Mendoza	7/22/16
Renaissance at Santa Clara	12/21/15
Sandstone apartments	12/18/15
Sierra Gateway I	1/5/16
Sierra Gateway II	1/5/16
Tanager I	8/26/16
Tanager II	8/26/16
Tyler Street Duplex	8/18/14
Viking Village Rehab	7/18/16
Villa Del Mar	7/1/16
Village @ Kings Canyon	3/25/16

Provide an assessment of the jurisdiction's affirmative marketing actions for HOME units. 92.351(b)

Affirmative marketing consists of additional actions taken beyond typical advertising efforts that are established to attract eligible persons who may otherwise not apply. The City requires affirmative marketing for available housing units in developments that have five or more HOME-assisted units. In 2015, the City had [#!] properties subject to affirmative marketing.

Affirmative marketing of business opportunities under the HOME Program include but are not limited to, hiring of persons and businesses for consultant services, vendors, contractors, developers and property owners that enter into agreements funded through

HOME. The City is required to adopt procedures to ensure the inclusion of minorities and women, to the maximum extent possible, in all contracting opportunities made possible through HOME funding. This includes opportunities for all types of business, including but not limited to real estate firms, construction firms, appraisal firms, management firms, financial institutions, investment banking firms, underwriters, accountants, and other professional services.

The City's policies and procedures call for the following affirmative marketing actions:

- The City will solicit qualified vendors who have received the Minority and Women Business Enterprise (MWBE) Certification from the State of California when they are potential sources.
- The City will divide large contracts, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises.
- The City will require all prime contractors, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed above.

In addition, the City has incorporated the following into its HOME Program Agreement between the City and the Developer to ensure HUD's affirmative marketing requirements are met:

"The developer warrants, covenants and agrees with the City that it shall comply with all affirmative marketing requirements, including without limitation, those set out at 24 C.F.R. 92.350 and 92.351, in order to provide information and otherwise attract eligible persons from all racial, ethnic and gender groups in the housing market in the rental of the Project Units. The developer shall be responsible for complying with the City's "Affirmative Marketing Policy" document, as amended from time to time. The DEVELOPER shall maintain records of actions taken to affirmatively market units constructed in the future, and to assess the results of these actions."

City staff performing annual monitoring checks to ensure an Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan has been submitted to HUD for review and approval.

In the program year, the HOME program worked with four different contractors, 1 identified as a Hispanic-owned business. Additional sub-contractors are reflected in the Minority Business Enterprises and Women Business Enterprise Table-9 below.

Table 9 – Minority Business and Women Business Enterprises

Minority Business Enterprises and Women Business Enterprises – Indicate the number and dollar value of contracts for HOME projects completed during the reporting period

period	Total	Minority Business Enterprises			White	
		Alaskan Native or American Indian	Asian or Pacific Islander	Black Non- Hispanic	Hispanic	Non- Hispanic (Includes Multi- Racial)
Contracts			•		-	_
Number	20	0	3	0	1	16
Dollar	1,167,180		193,777		62,450	910,953
Amount						
Sub-Contra	acts					
Number	49				5	44
Dollar	3,315,081					2,559,248
Amount						
	Total	Women Business Enterpris es	Male			
Contracts						
Number	20	0	20			
Dollar	1,167,180		1,167,180			
Amount						
Sub-Contra	acts]		
Number	49	2	47			
Dollar	3,315,081	23,716	3,291,365			
Amount						

Refer to IDIS reports to describe the amount and use of program income for projects, including the number of projects and owner and tenant characteristics.

The City expended a total of \$685,697.79 of HOME program income in the program year. The funds were used to reduce the amount of funds drawn from the City's Treasury account, and therefore the expenditures were applied to HOME-funded projects and administration. For a summary of the owner characteristics of the units assisted, please refer to Table 3 for race and ethnicity information and Table 14 for income data.

The total amount of program income for the period was \$685,697.79. That program income amount was used as follows:

- PR05 reflects \$612,106.56 in Program Income was paid in 2015-2016 and was used for the Lowell Neighborhood project costs with the \$5,897,893.44 balance paid from entitlement. The owner of the project is Lowell Neighborhood, LP. The tenant characteristics comprise of those earning between 30% to 60% of area median income. Of the 11 HOME units, three will be at or below 50% and the balance at 60%.
- PR05 report reflects \$2,633.47 in Program Income was paid in 2015-2016 and was used for the Cedar Courts/Inyo Terrace project cost with the \$1,497,366.53 balance paid from entitlement. The owner of the project is Southeast Fresno RAD, LP. The tenant characteristics comprise of those earning between 30% and 60% of area median income. Of the nine HOME units, two will be at or below 50% and the balance at 60%.
- PR05 report reflects \$70,957.76 was used in the Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program, which is limited to tenants who are at or below the HUD low-income limit defined as 80% or below the area median income. HUD establishes and periodically publishes this income limit by family size for each jurisdiction.

Describe other actions taken to foster and maintain affordable housing. 91.220(k)

The City of Fresno has adopted a 2015-2023 Housing Element that identifies the housing needs of the city and introduces program and activities aimed at addressing those needs. In addition, the City of Fresno examines the housing needs, long-term strategies to meet those needs, and determining priority needs of the city every five year. The Housing and Community Development Division currently operates a New Development/Major Rehabilitation Program, Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Program, Targeted Area Rehabilitation Program, Senior Paints Program, Tenant-Based Rental Assistance Program, Housing Opportunities for Person With Aids Program, and a Mortgage Assisted Program funded with State of California CalHome Program funds. The City of Fresno also operates a Neighborhood Revitalization Program that targets underserved lower income communities.

CR-55 - HOPWA 91.520(e)

Eligible Use of Funds	One-Year Goal	Actual
Short-term rent, mortgage, and utility assistance to prevent homelessness	47	State DPOS/OA Info
Tenant-based rental assistance	0	0
Units provided in permanent housing facilities developed, leased, or operated with HOPWA funds	0	0
Units provided in transitional short-term housing facilities developed, leased, or operated with HOPWA funds	0	0
Total	47	-

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA): Beginning in July 2015 the City began administering HOPWA. The City issued a Letter of Interest requesting interest for the operation of the HOPWA program, the successful agency was WestCare, CA and they have a subrecipient agreement totaling \$371,645 to perform HOPWA services. In April, 2016 the City conducted a launch meeting with WestCare, CA to review administration, expectations, reporting and goals.

The HOPWA program provides several categories of services based on the following four categories of HOPWA funds: Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA); Short-term Rental Mortgage and Utilities (STRMU); Support Services, and; Housing Information Services to families with family members who have AIDS. Prior to PY2015, the State of California administered the City's HOPWA allocation.

The program goals for PY2015 funds included meeting the needs of 30 households and 50 individuals using TBRA, 125 households/150 individuals using STRMU, 120 households using Supportive Services and 40 households using Housing Information Services funding. The transition to City oversight of HOPWA provided a time interval to meet the stated goals set for June 30, 2018 conclusion. The City continues to coordinate with the State of California Department of Health and the Fresno County Department of Health in providing services and affordable housing programs for existing clients. The State of California's 2014-15 HOPWA CAPER and program outcomes can be found at www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/aids/Pages/tOAHOPWAsp.aspx, a summary is provided below:

California Department of Public Health, Office of AIDS (DPH/OA) assumed the responsibility of administering the FY 2013-14 City of Fresno EMSA HOPWA grant \$355,403. In addition, there was an unspent balance of \$437,889 from FY 2011-12 and FY 2012-13. Of the \$793,292 available, Previous editions are obsolete Page 21 form HUD-40110-D (Expiration Date: 10/31/2014) \$188,975 was allocated to Fresno County Public Health (Fresno County) for the continuation of homeless prevention and supportive services in FY 2013-14, and \$487,612 was allocated through a Request for Application process to the Fresno Housing Authority to launch a TBRA program with a case management component. DPH/OA retained a 3% allowable grant administration fee, and the balance of \$106, 043 remains uncommitted. Fresno County provided homeless prevention housing services to 47 households and supportive services to 49 households during the program year. Fresno Housing Authority experienced a slow program start-up due to contracting and program development delays. The TBRA program began operation July 1, 2014 and program accomplishments will be reported in the next reporting year. All prior year grant funds will be expended within the allowable three-year operating period.

The City will provide an update on PY 15 HOPWA funded outcomes in the PY 2016 CAPER.

CR-60 - ESG 91.520(g) (ESG Recipients only) ESG Supplement to the CAPER in *e-snaps* For Paperwork Reduction Act

Recipient Information (1.)

ESG Contact Name
Prefix
First Name
Last Name
Title

ESG Contact Address Street Address Mr. Dannye Casey Project Manager

2600 Fresno Street

City, State, Zip
Phone Number
Fax Number
Email Address

Fresno, CA 93721 (559) 621-8469 (559) 488-1078 Dannye.Casey@Fresno.gov

Prefix	Ms.
First Name	Corrina
Last Name	Nunez
Title	Project Manager
Phone Number	(559) 621-8506
Fax Number	(559) 488-1078
Email Address	Corrina.nunez@fresno.gov

Reporting Period—All Recipients Complete (2.)

Program Year Start Date	07/01/2015
Program Year End Date	06/30/2016

Subrecipient Form – Complete one form for each subrecipient (3a.)

Subrecipient or Contractor Name: Fresno EOC City: Fresno State: CA Zip Code: 93721 DUNS Number: 78788000 Is subrecipient a VAWA-DV provider: N Subrecipient Organization Type: Other Non-Profit Organization ESG Subgrant or Contract Award Amount: \$82,000

Subrecipient or Contractor Name: Marjaree Mason Center City: Fresno State: CA Zip Code: 93721 DUNS Number: 27108700 Is subrecipient a VAWA-DV provider: N Subrecipient Organization Type: Other Non-Profit Organization ESG Subgrant or Contract Award Amount: \$194,750

Subrecipient or Contractor Name: Westcare, CA City: Fresno State: CA Zip Code: 93703

DUNS Number: 054-612-767 Is subrecipient a VAWA-DV provider: N Subrecipient Organization Type: Other Non-Profit Organization ESG Subgrant or Contract Award Amount: \$207,000

Subrecipient or Contractor Name: Poverello House City: Fresno State: CA Zip Code: 93706 DUNS Number: 127483000 Is subrecipient a VAWA-DV provider: N Subrecipient Organization Type: Other Non-Profit Organization ESG Subgrant or Contract Award Amount: \$15,000

CR-65 - Persons Assisted

See attachment regarding ESG persons assisted.

CR-70 – Assistance Provided

Shelter Utilization (8.)

Number of New Units – Rehabbed	0
Number of New Units – Conversion	0
Total Number of bed-nights available	161
Total Number of bed-nights provided	149
Capacity Utilization	93%

Table 23 – Shelter Capacity

Project Outcomes Data measured under the performance standards developed in consultation with the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care. (9.)

SHELTER BED INVENTORY: Reported are 161 transitional housing beds that are available each night: 119 at Marjaree Mason Center, 30 at Turning Point/Bride Point, and 12 at Fresno Economic Opportunity Commission's Youth Sanctuary.

The City acts as pass-through agency for ESG funds. While the City is responsible for the administration and oversight of the grant, the majority of funds are awarded to local homeless services providers who perform the day to day operations. The City continues to coordinate with the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care to determine the amount of the ESG allocations that should be used for each eligible use. The City also participates on the Executive Committee of the Continuum of Care and works alongside

the Continuum of Care on several local and national initiatives to prevent and end homelessness through the housing-first model.

The City worked with HUD and the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care to properly identify categories of funding for each prior program year and contract agreement amendments were initiated and executed to include specific program year and category information.

All ESG-funded beneficiaries are tracked in the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) by funded ESG subrecipients. The HMIS system is a local information technology system used to collect client-level data and data on the provision of housing and services to homeless individuals and families and persons at risk of homelessness and .can provide detailed reports in terms of the level of assistance received by each beneficiary. The Fresno Housing Authority manages the HMIS for all participating agencies in the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care. The current HMIS system provides detailed reports by gender, age, ethnicity-race, income level, as well as, program entry and exit data.

The City also worked with service agencies to provide a status update for the remaining three years of the *Ten-Year Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness* in May, 2016.

CR-75 – Expenditures

ESG Expenditures for Homelessness Prevention (11a.)

The City of Fresno has provided HUD with fully executed sub recipient agreements, as requested, for eligible and applicable activity program costs. Sub recipients are fulfilling their scope of work and submitting invoices to the City. Invoices are paid in a timely manner. However, the City is anticipating, and awaiting approval from HUD prior to drawing the prior year funds considered expired. The City continues to draw current funds as applicable. Including prior year allocations since PY 2011, the City has expended and/or reimbursed nearly \$2,000,000 (\$808,399 drawn) to subrecipients of the HUD ESG allocation, with the exception of current PY 2014 and PY 2015 activities. Outstanding activities are on track to be successfully implemented within HUD approved timelines.

Program Year	Emergency Shelter/Street Outreach	Homeless Prevention	Rapid Rehousing	Administration	HMIS
2011	318,355	47,407	138,846	18,061	0
2012	332,479	24,798	218.953	20,510	0

2013	135,505	18,133	220,190	25,462	18,719
2014	144,802	23,574	282,259	25,879	41,070
2015	195,000	20,000	277,000	41,750	26,100
TOTAL				\$2	,614,852

ESG EXPENDITURES:

For the following expenditure tables, this City is reporting actual expenditures rather than actual IDIS draws completed. The City anticipates receiving approval from HUD to complete draws prior to submitting the final PY CAPER to HUD September 30, 2016.

	Dollar Amount of Expenditures in Program Year			
	PY 2013	PY 2014	PY 2015	
Expenditures for Rental Assistance	\$15,475	\$20,759	\$3,197	
Expenditures for Housing Relocation and				
Stabilization Services - Financial				
Assistance	3,542	2,026	3,343	
Expenditures for Housing Relocation &				
Stabilization Services – Services	622	789	0.00	
Expenditures for Homeless Prevention				
under Emergency Shelter Grants				
Program	0	0	0	
Subtotal Homelessness Prevention	\$19,639	\$23,574	\$6,540	

Table 24 – ESG Expenditures for Homelessness Prevention

ESG Expenditures for Rapid Re-Housing (11b.) -

	Dollar Amount of Expenditures in Program Year			
	PY 2013	PY 2014	PY 2015	
Expenditures for Rental Assistance	81,603	118,427	45,088	
Expenditures for Housing Relocation				
and Stabilization Services - Financial				
Assistance	58,388	97,576	0	
Expenditures for Housing Relocation &				
Stabilization Services – Services	41,483	66,256	0	
Expenditures for Homeless Prevention	0	0	0	

under Emergency Shelter Grants					
Program					
Subtotal Rapid Re-Housing	\$181,474	\$282,259	\$45,088		

 Table 25 – ESG Expenditures for Rapid Re-Housing

ESG Expenditures for Emergency Shelter (11c.)

	Dollar Amount of Expenditures in Program Year			
	PY 2013	PY 2014	PY 2015	
Essential Services	\$145,272	\$142,405	\$46,441	
Operations	0	0	0	
Renovation	0	0	0	
Major Rehab	0	0	0	
Conversion	0	0	0	
Subtotal	\$145,272	\$142,405	\$46,441	

 Table 26 – ESG Expenditures for Emergency Shelter

Other Grant Expenditures (11d.)

	Dollar Amount of Expenditures in Program Year			
	PY 2013 PY 2014 PY 2015			
HMIS	\$0.00	0.00	0.00	
Administration	20,900	25,879	10,159	
Street Outreach	0.00	0.00	0.00	

Table 27 Other Grant Expenditures

Total ESG Grant Funds (11e.)

Total ESG Funds Expended	PY 2013	PY 2014	PY 2015
	\$418,009	474,117	\$108,228

 Table 28 Total ESG Funds Expended

Match Source (11f.)

	FY 2013	FY 2014	FY 2015
Other Non-ESG HUD Funds	-	-	254,084
Other Federal Funds (McKinney Vento)	-	5,300,000	7,190,710
State Government	-	-	75,000
Local Government	-	-	583,000
Private Funds	-	-	179,866
Other	-	-	117,503
Fees	0	0	-
Program Income	0	0	-
Total Match Amount			8,400,161

 Table 29 Other Funds Expended on Eligible ESG Activities

Total (11g.)

Total Amount of Funds Expended on ESG Activities	FY 2013	FY 2014	FY 2015
	\$418,009	474,117	108,228

Table 30 - Total Amount of Funds Expended on ESG Activities

ATTACHMENTS

- Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS)
 PR26 CDBG Financial Summary
- CR-65 Persons Assisted Emergency Solutions Grant Data
- Program Year Draft 2014 CAPER Addendum

Office of Community Planning and Development U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Integrated Disbursement and Information System PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report Program Year 2015 FRESNO , CA	DATE: TIME: PAGE:	09-07-16 10:31 1
--	-------------------------	------------------------

PART I: SUMMARY OF CDBG RESOURCES	
01 UNEXPENDED CDBG FUNDS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
02 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	6,279,643.00
03 SURPLUS URBAN RENEWAL	0.00
04 SECTION 108 GUARANTEED LOAN FUNDS	0.00
05 CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME	117,262.08
05a CURRENT YEAR SECTION 108 PROGRAM INCOME (FOR SI TYPE)	0.00
06 FUNDS RETURNED TO THE LINE-OF-CREDIT	0.00
06a FUNDS RETURNED TO THE LOCAL CDBG ACCOUNT	0.00
07 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AVAILABLE	0.00
08 TOTAL AVAILABLE (SUM, LINES 01-07)	6,396,905.08
PART II: SUMMARY OF CDBG EXPENDITURES	
09 DISBURSEMENTS OTHER THAN SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS AND PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	5,192,347.38
10 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT	0.00
11 AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT (LINE 09 + LINE 10)	5,192,347.38
12 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	1,100,956.40
13 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS	1,021,575.00
14 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL EXPENDITURES	0.00
15 TOTAL EXPENDITURES (SUM, LINES 11-14) 16 UNEXPENDED BALANCE (LINE 08 - LINE 15)	7,314,878.78 (917,973.70)
PART III: LOWMOD BENEFIT THIS REPORTING PERIOD	(917,973.70)
17 EXPENDED FOR LOW/MOD HOUSING IN SPECIAL AREAS	0.00
18 EXPENDED FOR LOW/MOD MULTI-UNIT HOUSING	0.00
19 DISBURSED FOR OTHER LOW/MOD ACTIVITIES	5,192,347.38
20 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL LOW/MOD CREDIT	0.00
21 TOTAL LOW/MOD CREDIT (SUM, LINES 17-20)	5,192,347.38
22 PERCENT LOW/MOD CREDIT (LINE 21/LINE 11)	100.00%
LOW/MOD BENEFIT FOR MULTI-YEAR CERTIFICATIONS	
23 PROGRAM YEARS(PY) COVERED IN CERTIFICATION	PY: PY: PY:
24 CUMULATIVE NET EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT CALCULATION	0.00
25 CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES BENEFITING LOW/MOD PERSONS	0.00
26 PERCENT BENEFIT TO LOW/MOD PERSONS (LINE 25/LINE 24)	0.00%
PART IV: PUBLIC SERVICE (PS) CAP CALCULATIONS	
27 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PUBLIC SERVICES	1,567,861.61
28 PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
29 PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
30 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS	0.00
31 TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS (LINE 27 + LINE 28 - LINE 29 + LINE 30)	1,567,861.61
32 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	6,279,643.00
33 PRIOR YEAR PROGRAM INCOME 34 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP	335,198.64
34 ADJOSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP 35 TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP (SUM, LINES 32-34)	0.00
36 PERCENT FUNDS OBLIGATED FOR PS ACTIVITIES (LINE 31/LINE 35)	6,614,841.64 23.70%
PART V: PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION (PA) CAP	23.7070
37 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	1,100,956.40
38 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
40 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS	0.00
41 TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS (LINE 37 + LINE 38 - LINE 39 +LINE 40)	1,100,956.40
42 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	6,279,643.00
43 CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME	117,262.08
44 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PA CAP	0.00
45 TOTAL SUBJECT TO PA CAP (SUM, LINES 42-44)	6,396,905.08
46 PERCENT FUNDS OBLIGATED FOR PA ACTIVITIES (LINE 41/LINE 45)	17.21%



Office of Community Planning and Development U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Integrated Disbursement and Information System

DATE:

TIME:

PAGE:

PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report

Program Year 2015

FRESNO, CA

LINE 17 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 17

Report returned no data.

LINE 18 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 18 Report returned no data.

LINE 19 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 19

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2013	2	5819	5823693	Anti-Graffiti Program	03	LMA	\$53,795.89
2014	2	5856	5905589	Anti-Graffiti Program	03	LMA	\$36,764.25
2015	6	5930	5906620	Graffiti Abatement Program (Non-PS)	03	LMA	\$217,755.30
2015	6	5930	5912127	Graffiti Abatement Program (Non-PS)	03	LMA	\$5,363.19
					03	Matrix Code	\$313,678.63
2013	2	5840	5915493	Community Center Improvements (Ted C. Wills)	03E	LMA	\$14,239.57
2013	2	5842	5915514	Community Center Improvements (Mosqueda)	03E	LMA	\$11,505.94
2013	2	5842	5916851	Community Center Improvements (Mosqueda)	03E	LMA	\$10,188.86
					03E	Matrix Code	\$35,934.37
2013	2	5834	5915490	Park Improvements (Holmes)	03F	LMA	\$52,226.75
2013	2	5834	5916863		03F	LMA	\$133,305.66
2013	2	5839	5915492	Park Improvements (Romain Park)	03F	LMA	\$47,998.00
2013	2	5839	5916854	Park Improvements (Romain Park)	03F	LMA	\$3,057.99
2014	2	5871	5905758	Park Improvements (Chandler)	03F	LMA	\$30,705.81
2014	2	5871	5916843	Park Improvements (Chandler)	03F	LMA	\$19,612.29
					03F	Matrix Code	\$286,906.50
2014	2	5858	5855295	Roy & Almy Reconstruction	03K	LMA	\$84,982.17
2014	2	5858	5908575	Roy & Almy Reconstruction	03K	LMA	\$195,734.47
2014	2	5866	5855348	Neighborhood Street Improvements - Ashlan and West	03K	LMA	\$167,383.76
2014	2	5867	5855354	Neighborhood Street Improvements - Ashlan and Holland	03K	LMA	\$225,536.00
2014	2	5868	5855358	Neighborhood Street Improvements - Weller and Bardell SW Fresno	03K	LMA	\$24,327.09
2014	2	5868	5905619	Neighborhood Street Improvements - Weller and Bardell SW Fresno	03K	LMA	\$263,506.00
2014	2	5868	5908572	Neighborhood Street Improvements - Weller and Bardell SW Fresno	03K	LMA	\$28,700.00
2014	2	5869	5855360	Neighborhood Street Improvements - Townsend and Heaton	03K	LMA	\$37,621.61
2014	2	5869	5908570	Neighborhood Street Improvements - Townsend and Heaton	03K	LMA	\$16,316.26
2014	2	5870	5855362	Neighborhood Street Improvements - First and Eighth	03K	LMA	\$319,294.32
					03K	Matrix Code	\$1,363,401.68
2015	14	5912	5911128	Parks After School Program	05	LMC	\$417,057.40
2015	14	5912	5921094	Parks After School Program	05	LMC	\$61,625.89
					05	Matrix Code	\$478,683.29
2013	3	5817	5823693	Senior Hot Meals	05A	LMC	\$120,492.53
2013	3	5817	5857084	Senior Hot Meals	05A	LMC	\$11,238.00
2014	3	5853	5908545	Senior Meals Program	05A	LMC	\$123,564.75
2015	13	5911	5911108	Senior Hot Meals	05A	LMC	\$81,237.56
					05A	Matrix Code	\$336,532.84
2014	2	5849	5851177	After School Programs	05D	LMC	\$628,316.48
				-	05D	Matrix Code	\$628,316.48
2015	7	5929	5906620	Graffiti Abatement Program (Public Service)	051	LMA	\$124,329.00
				-	051	Matrix Code	\$124,329.00
2013	1	5821	5844509		14A	LMH	\$20,300.00
2013	1	5822	5849900	-	14A	LMH	\$8,850.00
2013	1	5824	5846209	Target Area Distressed Property Program	14A	LMH	\$8,072.18
2014	4	5855	5851164	Low Income Assistance Grant	14A	LMH	\$35,455.00



Office of Community Planning and Development

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Integrated Disbursement and Information System

10:31

09-07-16

3

DATE:

TIME:

PAGE:

PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report

Program Year 2015

FRESNO, CA

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2014	4	5855	5871884	Low Income Assistance Grant	14A	LMH	\$1,370.00
2014	4	5857	5844622	Senior Paint Program	14A	LMH	\$27,661.00
2015	24	5903	5904883	Senior Paint Program	14A	LMH	\$28,760.00
					14A	Matrix Code	\$130,468.18
2014	4	5863	5856908	Housing Rehabilitation Administration	14H	LMH	\$231,423.94
2014	12	5893	5856905	Lead Hazard Control Program	14H	LMH	\$18,868.24
2015	28	5921	5914446	Housing Rehabilitation Admin	14H	LMH	\$114,703.28
2015	28	5926	5905293	Historic Preservation	14H	LMH	\$3,332.08
					14H	Matrix Code	\$368,327.54
2015	9	5925	5905764	Housing Services	14J	LMH	\$515.48
					14J	Matrix Code	\$515.48
2013	1	5830	5823693	Community Revitalization	15	LMA	\$182,944.95
2014	4	5859	5909009	Code Enforcement	15	LMA	\$518,694.94
2015	3	5904	5919184	Community Revitalization	15	LMA	\$315,721.89
2015	3	5904	5919664	Community Revitalization	15	LMA	\$107,891.61
					15	Matrix Code	\$1,125,253.39
Total						-	\$5,192,347.38

LINE 27 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 27

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2015	14	5912	5911128	Parks After School Program	05	LMC	\$417,057.40
2015	14	5912	5921094	Parks After School Program	05	LMC	\$61,625.89
					05	Matrix Code	\$478,683.29
2013	3	5817	5823693	Senior Hot Meals	05A	LMC	\$120,492.53
2013	3	5817	5857084	Senior Hot Meals	05A	LMC	\$11,238.00
2014	3	5853	5908545	Senior Meals Program	05A	LMC	\$123,564.75
2015	13	5911	5911108	Senior Hot Meals	05A	LMC	\$81,237.56
					05A	Matrix Code	\$336,532.84
2014	2	5849	5851177	After School Programs	05D	LMC	\$628,316.48
					05D	Matrix Code	\$628,316.48
2015	7	5929	5906620	Graffiti Abatement Program (Public Service)	051	LMA	\$124,329.00
					051	Matrix Code	\$124,329.00
Total						_	\$1,567,861.61

LINE 37 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 37

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2011	7	5758	5914448	Fulton Corridor and Downtown Specific Plan	20		\$107,823.56
2013	1	5844	5905337	Southwest Fresno Specific Plan	20		\$269,668.94
2014	11	5892	5856890	Homeless Services Planning and Adminstration	20		\$5,460.69
2015	4	5905	5919184	Community Revitalization	20		\$3,495.87
					20	Matrix Code	\$386,449.06
2013	4	5813	5823693	Housing Administration	21A		\$52,624.13
2013	4	5825	5823693	CDBG Monitoring and Administration	21A		\$17,464.13
2013	4	5828	5823693	HOME Program Administration	21A		\$146,900.00
2015	9	5910	5905342	CDBG Administration	21A		\$115,105.00
2015	29	5920	5910948	Homeless Services	21A		\$17,847.62
					21A	Matrix Code	\$349,940.88
2015	32	5927	5905177	Cost Allocation Plan	21B		\$283,316.46
					21B	Matrix Code	\$283,316.46
2013	1	5820	5823693	Fair Housing Program	21D		\$25,000.00
2014	4	5854	5871828	Fair Housing Council	21D		\$6,250.00

RTMEN	TOF		(Office of Community Planning and Development		DATE:	09-07-16
4PAT II.	h *04		U.S	. Department of Housing and Urban Development		TIME:	10:31
V SN *	5ING		Ir	ntegrated Disbursement and Information System		PAGE:	4
AND A	5			PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report			
	ELOPM ⁴¹			Program Year 2015			
CRBAN DE	VELO			FRESNO, CA			
Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2015	30	5919	5908041	Fair Housing Council	21D		\$15,000.00
					21D	Matrix Code	\$46,250.00
2015	18	5913	5919900	HOME Admin	21H	_	\$35,000.00
					21H	Matrix Code	\$35,000.00
Total							\$1,100,956.40

THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK.

Question 7

7. HMIS or Comparable Database Data Quality

Total number of records for All Clients	173
Total number of records for Adults Only	109
Total number of records for Unaccompanied Youth	0
Total number of records for Leavers	132

Data Element	Don't Know or Refused	Missing Data
First Name	0	0
Last Name	0	0
SSN	3	15
Date of Birth	0	0
Race	0	2
Ethnicity	0	0
Gender	0	0
Veteran Status	0	0
Disabling Condition	0	1
Residence Prior to Entry	0	0
Zip of Last Permanent Address	0	0
Housing Status (at entry)	0	0
Income (at entry)	0	1
Income (at exit)	0	0
Non-Cash Benefits (at entry)	0	1
Non-Cash Benefits (at exit)	0	0
Physical Disability (at entry)	0	1
Developmental Disability (at entry)	0	1
Chronic Health Condition (at entry)	0	1
HIV / AIDS (at entry)	0	1
Mental Health (at entry)	0	1
Substance Abuse (at entry)	0	1
Domestic Violence (at entry)	2	1
Destination	0	1

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Questions 8-9

8. Persons Served During the Operating Year by Type

Number of Persons in Households Served During the Operating Year

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Adults	109	77	32	0	0
Children	64	0	64	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Missing Information	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	173	77	96	0	0

Average Number of persons Served Each Night

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Average Number of Persons	43.95	19.12	24.83	0	0

Point-in-Time Count of Persons on the Last Wednesday in

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
January	61	21	40	0	0
April	49	27	22	0	0
July	65	28	37	0	0
October	19	8	11	0	0

9. Households Served During the Operating Year

Number of Households Served During the Operating Year

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Households	94	70	24	0	0

Point-in-Time Count of Households Served on the Last Wednesday in

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
January	27	18	9	0	0
April	29	24	5	0	0
July	36	27	9	0	0
October	11	7	4	0	0

Question 12

12. Client Contacts and Engagements

Number of Persons Contacted Rates During the Operating Year

	Total	First contacted at place not meant for human habitation	First contacted at non-housing service site	First contacted at housing location	First contact place was missing
Once	0	0	0	0	0
2-5 Times	0	0	0	0	0
6-9 Times	0	0	0	0	0
10+ Times	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	0	0	0	0	0

Number of Persons Engaged by Number of Contacts During the Operating Year

	Total	First contacted at place not meant for human habitation	First contacted at non-housing service site	First contacted at housing location	First contact place was missing
1 Contact	0	0	0	0	0
2-5 Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
6-9 Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
10+ Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	0	0	0	0	0
Rate of Engagement	0	0	0	0	0

Question 15

15a. Gender - Adults

Gender of Adults Number of Adults in Households								
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	Unknown HH Type				
Male	65	58	7	0				
Female	44	19	25	0				
Transgendered	0	0	0	0				
Other	0	0	0	0				
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0				
Information Missing	0	0	0	0				
Subtotal	109	77	32	0				

15b. Gender - Children

Gender of Children Number of Children in Households

	Total	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Male	33	33	0	0
Female	31	31	0	0
Transgendered	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	64	64	0	0

15c. Gender - Missing Age

Gender of Persons Missing Age Information Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Male	0	0	0	0	0
Female	0	0	0	0	0
Transgendered	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0

Questions 16-17

16. Age

Age Number of Persons in Households								
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type			
Under 5	16	0	16	0	0			
5 - 12	35	0	35	0	0			
13 - 17	13	0	13	0	0			
18 - 24	12	8	4	0	0			
25 - 34	21	6	15	0	0			
35 - 44	25	15	10	0	0			
45 - 54	23	22	1	0	0			
55 - 61	23	21	2	0	0			
62+	5	5	0	0	0			
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0			
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0			
Age Error (Negative Age or 100+)	0	0	0	0	0			
Total	173	77	96	0	0			

17a. Ethnicity

Ethnicity Number of Persons in Households							
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type		
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	94	54	40	0	0		
Hispanic/Latino	79	23	56	0	0		
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0		
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0		
Total	173	77	96	0	0		

17b. Race

		ace						
Number of Persons in Households								
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type			
White	99	43	56	0	0			
Black or African-American	65	26	39	0	0			
Asian	1	1	0	0	0			
American Indian or Alaska Native	3	3	0	0	0			
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	1	1	0	0	0			
Multiple Races	2	1	1	0	0			
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0			
Information Missing	2	2	0	0	0			
Total	173	77	96	0	0			

HUD CoC APR

Annual Performance Report

Questions 18-19

18a. Physical and Mental Health Types of Conditions at Entry

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions

Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Mental Illness	31	25	6	0	0
Alcohol Abuse	5	5	0	0	0
Drug Abuse	5	5	0	0	0
Chronic Health Condition	36	31	5	0	0
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	0	0	0	0	0
Developmental Disability	20	14	6	0	0
Physical Disability	33	28	5	0	0

18b. Physical and Mental Health Known Conditions at Entry

Number of Known Conditions Number of Persons

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
None	102	24	78	0	0
1 Condition	27	13	14	0	0
2 Conditions	16	15	1	0	0
3+ Conditions	25	23	2	0	0
Condition Unknown	2	1	1	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	1	1	0	0	0
TOTAL:	173	77	96	0	0

19a. Victims of Domestic Violence

Past Domestic Violence Experience Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Children in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Yes	23	14	9	0	0
No	83	61	22	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	2	1	1	0	0
Information Missing	1	1	0	0	0
TOTAL	109	77	32	0	0

19b. When Past Domestic Violence Experience Occurred

Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Children in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Less than 3 Months	2	0	2	0	0
3 to 6 Months Ago	4	1	3	0	0
6 to 12 Months Ago	2	2	0	0	0
More than a year Ago	15	11	4	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	23	14	9	0	0

20a1. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Homeless Situations

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Homeless Situations

Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Emergency Shelter	36	23	13	0	0
Transitional housing for homeless persons	1	1	0	0	0
Place not meant for habitation	70	51	19	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	107	75	32	0	0

20a2. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Institutional Settings

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Institutional Settings Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility	0	0	0	0	0
Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center	1	1	0	0	0
Hospital (Non-psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail, prison , or juvenile detention facility	0	0	0	0	0
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0	0

20a3. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Other Locations

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Other Locations Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Youth in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
PSH for Homeless persons	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, no Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Hotel/Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Staying or Living with Family	0	0	0	0	0
Staying or Living with Friend(s)	0	0	0	0	0
Other	1	1	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0	0

Questions 21-22

21. Veteran Status

Veteran Status Number of Adults in Households								
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	Unknown HH Type				
Veteran	2	1	1	0				
Not a Veteran	107	76	31	0				
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0				
Information Missing	0	0	0	0				
Total	109	77	32	0				

22a1. Physical and Mental Health Condition Types at Exit - Leavers

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions Leavers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown					
Mental Illness	23	21	2	0					
Alcohol Abuse	4	4	0	0					
Drug Abuse	4	4	0	0					
Chronic Health Condition	29	27	2	0					
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	0	0	0	0					
Developmental Disability	16	12	4	0					
Physical Disability	24	22	2	0					

22a2. Known Physical and Mental Health Condition at Exit - Leavers

Number of Known Conditions Leavers - Total Number by Type

		All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown				
None		80	37	43	0				
1 Condition		20	13	7	0				
2 Conditions		13	13	0	0				
3+ Conditions		18	17	1	0				
Condition Unknown		1	1	0	0				
Don't Know / Refused		0	0	0	0				
Information Missing		0	0	0	0				
	TOTAL:	132	81	51	0				

HUD CoC APR

Annual Performance Report

Questions 21-22

22b1. Physical and Mental Health Condition Types at Exit – Stayers

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions

Stayers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown
Mental Illness	8	7	1	0
Alcohol Abuse	2	2	0	0
Drug Abuse	2	2	0	0
Chronic Health Condition	11	11	0	0
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	0	0	0	0
Developmental Disability	5	5	0	0
Physical Disability	11	11	0	0

22b2. Known Physical and Mental Health Condition at Exit – Stayers

Number of Known Conditions Stavers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown
None	20	8	12	0
1 Condition	7	6	1	0
2 Conditions	6	6	0	0
3+ Conditions	7	7	0	0
Condition Unknown	1	1	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
TOTAL:	41	28	13	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Questions 23-24

23. Cash Income Range	I	Number of Adults						
	Income at Entry	Income at Latest Follow- up for Stayers	Income at Exit for Leavers					
No Income	24	5	20					
\$1 - \$150	4	0	5					
\$151 - \$250	13	1	9					
\$251 - \$500	12	3	9					
\$501 - \$1,000	38	14	22					
\$1,001 - \$1,500	9	2	10					
\$1,501 - \$2,000	6	2	4					
\$2,001 +	2	0	2					
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0					
Information Missing	1	1	0					
Total	109	28	81					

24.a Number of Adults By Income Category	Adults at Entry	Adults at Latest Follow- up (Stayers)	Adults at Exit (Leavers)
Adults with Only Earned Income	16	4	12
Adults with Only Other Income	65	17	46
Adults with Both Earned Income and Other Income	3	1	3
Adults with No Income	24	5	20
Adults with DK/R Income Information	0	0	0
Adults with Missing Income Information	1	1	0
Total Adults	109	28	81
Adults with Income Information at Entry and Follow-up/Exit		26	81

24.b.1 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Adult Stayers with Income Info at Entry and Follow-up)	Had Income Category at Entry and Not at Follow-up	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Follow-up	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Follow-up	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Follow-up	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Follow-up	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Follow-up	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	3	1	1	21	26
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		\$1,920.00	\$900.00		
Adults with Other Income	0	1	15	1	0	9	26
Average Change in Other Income	0	(\$20.00)		\$900.00	0		
Adults Any Income	0	1	18	2	0	5	26
Avg Change in Overall Income	0	(\$20.00)		\$1,010.00	0		\$76.92

24.b.2 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Adult Leavers with Income Info at Entry and Exit)	Had Income Category at Entry and Did Not Have at Exit	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Exit	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Exit	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Exit	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Exit	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Exit	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	14	1	0	66	81
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		\$1,400.00	0		
Adults with Other Income	1	2	45	2	0	31	81
Avg Change in Other Income	(\$486.00)	(\$112.50)		\$124.50	0		
Adults Any Income	1	3	54	4	0	19	81
Avg Change in Overall Income	(\$486.00)	(\$575.00)		\$440.25	0		(\$5.56)

24.b.3 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Total Adults with Income Info at Entry and Either Follow Up (Stayers) or Exit (Leavers))	Had Income Category at Entry and Did Not at Follow- up/Exit	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Follow-up/Exit	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Follow-up/Exit	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	17	2	1	87	107
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		\$1,660.00	\$900.00		
Adults with Other Income	1	3	60	3	0	40	107
Avg Change in Other Income	(\$486.00)	(\$81.67)		\$383.00	0		
Adults Any Income	1	4	72	6	0	24	107
Avg Change in Overall Income	(\$486.00)	(\$436.25)		\$630.17	0		\$14.49

Question 25

25a1. Cash Income Types by Exit Status - Leavers

Cash-Income Sources Type of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Earned Income	15	15	0	0
Unemployment Insurance	3	3	0	0
SSI	16	16	0	0
SSDI	12	12	0	0
Veteran's Disability	0	0	0	0
Private Disability Insurance	1	1	0	0
Worker's Compensation	0	0	0	0
TANF or Equivalent	11	11	0	0
General Assistance	15	15	0	0
Retirement (Social Security)	0	0	0	0
Veteran's Pension	0	0	0	0
Pension from Former Job	1	1	0	0
Child Support	4	4	0	0
Alimony (Spousal Support)	0	0	0	0
Other Source	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	78	78	0	0

25a2. Cash-Income by Exit Status - Leavers

Cash-Income Sources Number of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	20	20	0	0
1+ Source(s)	61	61	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	81	81	0	0

Question 25

25b1. Cash-Income Sources - Stayers

Cash-Income Sources Type of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Earned Income	5	5	0	0
Unemployment Insurance	0	0	0	0
SSI	10	10	0	0
SSDI	6	6	0	0
Veteran's Disability	0	0	0	0
Private Disability Insurance	0	0	0	0
Worker's Compensation	0	0	0	0
TANF or Equivalent	4	4	0	0
General Assistance	4	4	0	0
Retirement (Social Security)	0	0	0	0
Veteran's Pension	0	0	0	0
Pension from Former Job	0	0	0	0
Child Support	0	0	0	0
Alimony (Spousal Support)	0	0	0	0
Other Source	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	29	29	0	0

25b2. Cash Income Number of Sources - Stayers

Cash-Income Sources Number of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	5	5	0	0
1+ Source(s)	23	23	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	28	28	0	0

Question 26

26a1. Non-Cash Benefit Types by Exit Status - Leavers

Non-Cash Benefits Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program	51	51	0	0
MEDICAID Health Insurance	29	29	0	0
MEDICARE Health Insurance	8	8	0	0
State Children's Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
WIC	2	2	0	0
VA Medical Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Child Care Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Transportation Services	0	0	0	0
Other TANF-Funded Services	1	1	0	0
Temporary Rental Assistance	0	0	0	0
Section 8, Public Housing, Rental Assistance	6	6	0	0
Other Source	52	52	0	0
TOTAL	149	149	0	0

26a2. Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status - Leavers

Client Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status Number of Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	1	1	0	0
1+ Source(s)	80	80	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	81	81	0	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 26

26b1. Non-Cash Benefit Sources - Stayers

Non-Cash Benefits Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program	14	14	0	0
MEDICAID Health Insurance	2	2	0	0
MEDICARE Health Insurance	6	6	0	0
State Children's Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
WIC	2	2	0	0
VA Medical Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Child Care Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Transportation Services	0	0	0	0
Other TANF-Funded Services	0	0	0	0
Temporary Rental Assistance	0	0	0	0
Section 8, Public Housing, Rental Assistance	1	1	0	0
Other Source	26	26	0	0
TOTAL	51	51	0	0

26b2. Number of Non-Cash Benefit Sources - Stayers

Client Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status Number of Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown			
No Sources	0	0	0	0			
1+ Source(s)	28	28	0	0			
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0			
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0			
TOTAL	28	28	0	0			

Question 27

27. Length of Participation by Exit Status

Length of Participation by Exit Status Number of Persons

	Total	Leavers	Stayers
Less than 30 days	24	22	2
31 to 60 days	37	35	2
61 to 180 days	84	71	13
181 to 365 days	24	3	21
366 to 730 days (1-2 Yrs)	4	1	3
731 to 1095 days (2-3 Yrs)	0	0	0
1096 to 1460 days (3-4 Yrs)	0	0	0
1461 to 1825 days (4-5 Yrs)	0	0	0
More than 1825 Days (>5 Yrs)	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0
Total	173	132	41

Average and Median Length of Participation in Days

	Average Length	Median Length
Leavers	81	76
Stayers	188	192

Question 29

29a1. Destination by Household Type and Length of Stay (All Leavers who Stayed More than 90 Day: Number of Leavers in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Owned by Client, no Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no Ongoing subsidy	27	11	16	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other Ongoing Subsidy	23	20	3	0	0
PSH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Living with Family, Permanent Tenure	1	1	0	0	0
Living with Friends, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	51	32	19	0	0
Temporary Destinations					
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0
TH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Family, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Friends, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Place Not Meant for Human Habitation	0	0	0	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
Hotel or Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Institutional Settings					
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
Psychiatric Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Substance Abuse or Detox Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Hospital (non-Psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail or Prison	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Other Destinations					
Deceased	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	1	1	0	0	0
Subtotal	1	1	0	0	0

Question 29

29a2. Destination by Household Type and Length of Stay (All Leavers who Stayed 90 Days or Less) Number of Leavers in Households

Permanent Destinations					
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Owned by Client, no Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no Ongoing subsidy	50	7	43	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other Ongoing Subsidy	26	11	15	0	0
PSH for Homeless Persons	1	1	0	0	0
Living with Family, Permanent Tenure	1	1	0	0	0
Living with Friends, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	78	20	58	0	0
Temporary Destinations					
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0
TH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Family, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Friends, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Place Not Meant for Human Habitation	1	1	0	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
Hotel or Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	1	1	0	0	0
Institutional Settings					
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
Psychiatric Facility	1	1	0	0	0
Substance Abuse or Detox Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Hospital (non-Psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail or Prison	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	1	1	0	0	0
Other Destinations					
Deceased	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 36

36a. Permanent Housing Programs / Rapid Re-Housing Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			173	170	98.27%	
2a. Total Income Measure			109	78	71.56%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			104	20	19.23%	

36b. Transitional Housing Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

36c. Street Outreach Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Physical Disability			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Developmental Disability			0	0	0.00%	
2c. Chronic Health			0	0	0.00%	
2d. HIV/AIDS			0	0	0.00%	
2e. Mental Health			0	0	0.00%	
2f. Substance Abuse			0	0	0.00%	

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 36

36d. Supportive Services Only (SSO) Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

36e. Safe Haven Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Additional Information

User Prompt Field	Value(s) Selected
1. Select Provider Group(s):	-None Selected-
1. Select Provider(s):	FEOC CITY ESG Rapid Rehousing(3713); WestCare ESG Project Unite RR(3729); WestCare SJVV CITY ESG Rapid Rehousing(3715)
2. Enter Start Date:	7/1/2015
3. Enter End Date PLUS 1 Day:	7/1/2016
4. Select Entry Type:	HUD
5. Enter Adult Age:	18
EDA Provider	-Default Provider-
Enter Effective Date	7/1/2016
Is using the Disability Determination field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using the Receiving Income Source field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using the Receiving Benefit field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using Interim Reviews part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes

Provider Reporting Information	Client Count Based on Uid	Unduplicated Count
FEOC CITY ESG Rapid Rehousing(3713)	54	54
WestCare ESG Project Unite RR(3729)	116	116
WestCare SJVV CITY ESG Rapid Rehousing(3715)	3	3

© 2015 Bowman Systems L.L.C. All Rights Reserved.

This document and the information contained herein should be considered business sensitive.

Bowman Systems® and the Bowman Systems® logo are trademarks of Bowman Systems L.L.C. All other brand or product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

Bowman Systems 333 Texas Street, 300 Shreveport, LA 71101 Toll Free: (844) 213-8780 Direct: (318) 213-8780 Fax: (318) 213-8784 http://www.bowmansystems.com THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK.

Question 7

7. HMIS or Comparable Database Data Quality

Total number of records for All Clients	104
Total number of records for Adults Only	43
Total number of records for Unaccompanied Youth	0
Total number of records for Leavers	93

Data Element	Don't Know or Refused	Missing Data
First Name	0	0
Last Name	0	0
SSN	4	7
Date of Birth	2	0
Race	0	0
Ethnicity	0	0
Gender	0	0
Veteran Status	0	0
Disabling Condition	0	0
Residence Prior to Entry	0	0
Zip of Last Permanent Address	0	0
Housing Status (at entry)	0	0
Income (at entry)	0	0
Income (at exit)	0	0
Non-Cash Benefits (at entry)	0	0
Non-Cash Benefits (at exit)	0	0
Physical Disability (at entry)	0	0
Developmental Disability (at entry)	0	0
Chronic Health Condition (at entry)	0	0
HIV / AIDS (at entry)	0	0
Mental Health (at entry)	0	0
Substance Abuse (at entry)	0	0
Domestic Violence (at entry)	0	0
Destination	0	2

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Questions 8-9

8. Persons Served During the Operating Year by Type

Number of Persons in Households Served During the Operating Year

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Adults	43	7	36	0	0
Children	59	0	59	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Missing Information	2	0	2	0	0
TOTAL	104	7	97	0	0

Average Number of persons Served Each Night

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Average Number of Persons	20.09	1.81	18.28	0	0

Point-in-Time Count of Persons on the Last Wednesday in

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
January	18	1	17	0	0
April	11	2	9	0	0
July	42	3	39	0	0
October	18	3	15	0	0

9. Households Served During the Operating Year

Number of Households Served During the Operating Year

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Households	30	6	24	0	0

Point-in-Time Count of Households Served on the Last Wednesday in

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
January	6	1	5	0	0
April	5	2	3	0	0
July	13	3	10	0	0
October	6	2	4	0	0

Question 12

12. Client Contacts and Engagements

Number of Persons Contacted Rates During the Operating Year

	Total	First contacted at place not meant for human habitation	First contacted at non-housing service site	First contacted at housing location	First contact place was missing
Once	1	0	0	0	1
2-5 Times	0	0	0	0	0
6-9 Times	0	0	0	0	0
10+ Times	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	0	0	0	1

Number of Persons Engaged by Number of Contacts During the Operating Year

	Total	First contacted at place not meant for human habitation	First contacted at non-housing service site	First contacted at housing location	First contact place was missing
1 Contact	1	0	0	0	1
2-5 Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
6-9 Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
10+ Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	0	0	0	1
Rate of Engagement	100.00%	0	0	0	100.00%

Question 15

15a. Gender - Adults

Gender of Adults Number of Adults in Households										
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	Unknown HH Type						
Male	15	2	13	0						
Female	28	5	23	0						
Transgendered	0	0	0	0						
Other	0	0	0	0						
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0						
Information Missing	0	0	0	0						
Subtotal	43	7	36	0						

15b. Gender - Children

Gender of Children Number of Children in Households

	Total	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Male	23	23	0	0
Female	36	36	0	0
Transgendered	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	59	59	0	0

15c. Gender - Missing Age

Gender of Persons Missing Age Information Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Male	2	0	2	0	0
Female	0	0	0	0	0
Transgendered	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	2	0	2	0	0

Questions 16-17

16. Age

Age Number of Persons in Households									
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type				
Under 5	24	0	24	0	0				
5 - 12	23	0	23	0	0				
13 - 17	12	0	12	0	0				
18 - 24	8	0	8	0	0				
25 - 34	10	0	10	0	0				
35 - 44	15	2	13	0	0				
45 - 54	5	3	2	0	0				
55 - 61	4	2	2	0	0				
62+	1	0	1	0	0				
Don't Know/Refused	2	0	2	0	0				
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0				
Age Error (Negative Age or 100+)	0	0	0	0	0				
Total	104	7	97	0	0				

17a. Ethnicity

Ethnicity Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	63	5	58	0	0
Hispanic/Latino	41	2	39	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Total	104	7	97	0	0

17b. Race

Race Number of Persons in Households									
	Number of Perse Total	ons in Househ Without Children	Olds With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type				
White	51	4	47	0	0				
Black or African-American	52	2	50	0	0				
Asian	0	0	0	0	0				
American Indian or Alaska Native	0	0	0	0	0				
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	0	0	0	0	0				
Multiple Races	1	1	0	0	0				
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0				
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0				
Total	104	7	97	0	0				

HUD CoC APR

Annual Performance Report

Questions 18-19

18a. Physical and Mental Health Types of Conditions at Entry

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions

Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Mental Illness	13	3	10	0	0
Alcohol Abuse	0	0	0	0	0
Drug Abuse	0	0	0	0	0
Chronic Health Condition	10	2	8	0	0
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	0	0	0	0	0
Developmental Disability	7	1	6	0	0
Physical Disability	9	2	7	0	0

18b. Physical and Mental Health Known Conditions at Entry

Number of Known Conditions

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
None	73	2	71	0	0
1 Condition	24	2	22	0	0
2 Conditions	4	2	2	0	0
3+ Conditions	3	1	2	0	0
Condition Unknown	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL:	104	7	97	0	0

19a. Victims of Domestic Violence

Past Domestic Violence Experience Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Children in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Yes	5	1	4	0	0
No	38	6	32	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	43	7	36	0	0

19b. When Past Domestic Violence Experience Occurred

Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Children in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Less than 3 Months	0	0	0	0	0
3 to 6 Months Ago	0	0	0	0	0
6 to 12 Months Ago	0	0	0	0	0
More than a year Ago	5	1	4	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	5	1	4	0	0

20a1. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Homeless Situations

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Homeless Situations

N	umber	of Pe	rsons	in H	louse	hold	S

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0
Transitional housing for homeless persons	0	0	0	0	0
Place not meant for habitation	0	0	0	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	0	0	0	0	0

20a2. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Institutional Settings

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Institutional Settings Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility	0	0	0	0	0
Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center	1	1	0	0	0
Hospital (Non-psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail, prison , or juvenile detention facility	0	0	0	0	0
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0	0

20a3. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Other Locations

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Other Locations Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Youth in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
PSH for Homeless persons	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, no Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no subsidy	34	3	31	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other ongoing Subsidy	4	2	2	0	0
Hotel/Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Staying or Living with Family	1	0	1	0	0
Staying or Living with Friend(s)	2	0	2	0	0
Other	1	1	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	42	6	36	0	0

Questions 21-22

21. Veteran Status

Veteran Status					
Number of Adults in Households					

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	Unknown HH Type
Veteran	2	1	1	0
Not a Veteran	41	6	35	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
Total	43	7	36	0

22a1. Physical and Mental Health Condition Types at Exit - Leavers

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions Leavers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown
Mental Illness	11	7	4	0
Alcohol Abuse	0	0	0	0
Drug Abuse	0	0	0	0
Chronic Health Condition	10	9	1	0
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	0	0	0	0
Developmental Disability	6	3	3	0
Physical Disability	7	7	0	0

22a2. Known Physical and Mental Health Condition at Exit - Leavers

Number of Known Conditions Leavers - Total Number by Type

Leavers - rotal number by Type							
		All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown		
None		65	18	45	2		
1 Condition		23	16	7	0		
2 Conditions		3	2	1	0		
3+ Conditions		2	2	0	0		
Condition Unknown		0	0	0	0		
Don't Know / Refused		0	0	0	0		
Information Missing		0	0	0	0		
	TOTAL:	93	38	53	2		

HUD CoC APR

Annual Performance Report

Questions 21-22

22b1. Physical and Mental Health Condition Types at Exit – Stayers

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions

Stayers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown
Mental Illness	2	2	0	0
Alcohol Abuse	0	0	0	0
Drug Abuse	0	0	0	0
Chronic Health Condition	0	0	0	0
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	0	0	0	0
Developmental Disability	1	1	0	0
Physical Disability	2	2	0	0

22b2. Known Physical and Mental Health Condition at Exit – Stayers

Number of Known Conditions Stayers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown
None	8	2	6	0
1 Condition	1	1	0	0
2 Conditions	1	1	0	0
3+ Conditions	1	1	0	0
Condition Unknown	0	0	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
TOTAL:	11	5	6	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Questions 23-24

23. Cash Income Range	Number of Adults					
	Income at Entry	Income at Latest Follow- up for Stayers	Income at Exit for Leavers			
No Income	7	0	7			
\$1 - \$150	1	0	1			
\$151 - \$250	1	0	1			
\$251 - \$500	7	0	6			
\$501 - \$1,000	15	2	10			
\$1,001 - \$1,500	7	0	8			
\$1,501 - \$2,000	5	0	5			
\$2,001 +	0	0	0			
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0			
Information Missing	0	3	0			
Total	43	5	38			

24.a Number of Adults By Income Category	Adults at Entry	Adults at Latest Follow- up (Stayers)	Adults at Exit (Leavers)
Adults with Only Earned Income	6	0	7
Adults with Only Other Income	26	2	20
Adults with Both Earned Income and Other Income	4	0	4
Adults with No Income	7	0	7
Adults with DK/R Income Information	0	0	0
Adults with Missing Income Information	0	3	0
Total Adults	43	5	38
Adults with Income Information at Entry and Follow-up/Exit		2	38

24.b.1 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Adult Stayers with Income Info at Entry and Follow-up)	Had Income Category at Entry and Not at Follow-up	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Follow-up	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Follow-up	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Follow-up	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Follow-up	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Follow-up	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults with Other Income	0	0	2	0	0	0	2
Average Change in Other Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults Any Income	0	0	2	0	0	0	2
Avg Change in Overall Income	0	0		0	0		\$0.00

24.b.2 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Adult Leavers with Income Info at Entry and Exit)	Had Income Category at Entry and Did Not Have at Exit	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Exit	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Exit	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Exit	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Exit	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Exit	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	10	0	1	27	38
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		0	\$1,500.00		
Adults with Other Income	1	0	24	0	0	13	38
Avg Change in Other Income	(\$369.00)	0		0	0		
Adults Any Income	0	0	30	1	0	7	38
Avg Change in Overall Income	0	0		\$1,131.00	0		\$29.76

24.b.3 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Total Adults with Income Info at Entry and Either Follow Up (Stayers) or Exit (Leavers))	Had Income Category at Entry and Did Not at Follow- up/Exit	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Follow-up/Exit	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Follow-up/Exit	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	10	0	1	29	40
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		0	\$1,500.00		
Adults with Other Income	1	0	26	0	0	13	40
Avg Change in Other Income	(\$369.00)	0		0	0		
Adults Any Income	0	0	32	1	0	7	40
Avg Change in Overall Income	0	0		\$1,131.00	0		\$28.28

Question 25

25a1. Cash Income Types by Exit Status - Leavers

Cash-Income Sources Type of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Earned Income	11	11	0	0
Unemployment Insurance	4	4	0	0
SSI	6	6	0	0
SSDI	2	2	0	0
Veteran's Disability	1	1	0	0
Private Disability Insurance	0	0	0	0
Worker's Compensation	0	0	0	0
TANF or Equivalent	13	13	0	0
General Assistance	1	1	0	0
Retirement (Social Security)	0	0	0	0
Veteran's Pension	0	0	0	0
Pension from Former Job	1	1	0	0
Child Support	1	1	0	0
Alimony (Spousal Support)	0	0	0	0
Other Source	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	40	40	0	0

25a2. Cash-Income by Exit Status - Leavers

Cash-Income Sources Number of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	7	7	0	0
1+ Source(s)	31	31	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	38	38	0	0

Question 25

25b1. Cash-Income Sources - Stayers

Cash-Income Sources Type of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Earned Income	0	0	0	0
Unemployment Insurance	0	0	0	0
SSI	1	1	0	0
SSDI	1	1	0	0
Veteran's Disability	1	1	0	0
Private Disability Insurance	0	0	0	0
Worker's Compensation	0	0	0	0
TANF or Equivalent	1	1	0	0
General Assistance	1	1	0	0
Retirement (Social Security)	0	0	0	0
Veteran's Pension	0	0	0	0
Pension from Former Job	0	0	0	0
Child Support	0	0	0	0
Alimony (Spousal Support)	0	0	0	0
Other Source	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	5	5	0	0

25b2. Cash Income Number of Sources - Stayers

Cash-Income Sources Number of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	0	0	0	0
1+ Source(s)	5	5	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	5	5	0	0

Question 26

26a1. Non-Cash Benefit Types by Exit Status - Leavers

Non-Cash Benefits Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program	21	21	0	0
MEDICAID Health Insurance	4	4	0	0
MEDICARE Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
State Children's Health Insurance	1	1	0	0
WIC	6	6	0	0
VA Medical Services	1	1	0	0
TANF Child Care Services	1	1	0	0
TANF Transportation Services	1	1	0	0
Other TANF-Funded Services	1	1	0	0
Temporary Rental Assistance	1	1	0	0
Section 8, Public Housing, Rental Assistance	3	3	0	0
Other Source	26	26	0	0
TOTAL	66	66	0	0

26a2. Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status - Leavers

Client Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status Number of Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	6	6	0	0
1+ Source(s)	32	32	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	38	38	0	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 26

26b1. Non-Cash Benefit Sources - Stayers

Non-Cash Benefits Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program	3	3	0	0
MEDICAID Health Insurance	1	1	0	0
MEDICARE Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
State Children's Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
WIC	1	1	0	0
VA Medical Services	1	1	0	0
TANF Child Care Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Transportation Services	0	0	0	0
Other TANF-Funded Services	0	0	0	0
Temporary Rental Assistance	0	0	0	0
Section 8, Public Housing, Rental Assistance	1	1	0	0
Other Source	3	3	0	0
TOTAL	10	10	0	0

26b2. Number of Non-Cash Benefit Sources - Stayers

Client Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status Number of Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Stayers

	•				
	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown	
No Sources	0	0	0	0	
1+ Source(s)	5	5	0	0	
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0	
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0	
TOTAL	5	5	0	0	

Question 27

27. Length of Participation by Exit Status

Length of Participation by Exit Status Number of Persons

Nulliber OF Persons					
	Total	Leavers	Stayers		
Less than 30 days	25	19	6		
31 to 60 days	36	36	0		
61 to 180 days	35	34	1		
181 to 365 days	4	4	0		
366 to 730 days (1-2 Yrs)	4	0	4		
731 to 1095 days (2-3 Yrs)	0	0	0		
1096 to 1460 days (3-4 Yrs)	0	0	0		
1461 to 1825 days (4-5 Yrs)	0	0	0		
More than 1825 Days (>5 Yrs)	0	0	0		
Information Missing	0	0	0		
Total	104	93	11		

Average and Median Length of Participation in Days

	Average Length	Median Length
Leavers	70	57
Stayers	156	2

Question 29

29a1. Destination by Household Type and Length of Stay (All Leavers who Stayed More than 90 Day: Number of Leavers in Households

Permanent Destinations								
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type			
Owned by Client, no Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0			
Owned by Client, with Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0			
Rental by Client, no Ongoing subsidy	17	0	17	0	0			
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0			
Rental by Client, with other Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0			
PSH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0			
Living with Family, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0			
Living with Friends, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0			
Subtotal	17	0	17	0	0			
Temporary Destinations								
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0			
TH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0			
Staying with Family, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0			
Staying with Friends, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0			
Place Not Meant for Human Habitation	0	0	0	0	0			
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0			
Hotel or Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0			
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0			
Institutional Settings								
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0			
Psychiatric Facility	0	0	0	0	0			
Substance Abuse or Detox Facility	0	0	0	0	0			
Hospital (non-Psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0			
Jail or Prison	0	0	0	0	0			
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0			
Other Destinations								
Deceased	0	0	0	0	0			
Other	0	0	0	0	0			
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0			
Information Missing	4	0	4	0	0			
Subtotal	4	0	4	0	0			

Question 29

29a2. Destination by Household Type and Length of Stay (All Leavers who Stayed 90 Days or Less) Number of Leavers in Households

Permanent Destinations					
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Owned by Client, no Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no Ongoing subsidy	65	5	60	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other Ongoing Subsidy	5	0	5	0	0
PSH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Living with Family, Permanent Tenure	2	0	2	0	0
Living with Friends, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	72	5	67	0	0
Temporary Destinations					
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0
TH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Family, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Friends, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Place Not Meant for Human Habitation	0	0	0	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
Hotel or Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Institutional Settings					
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
Psychiatric Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Substance Abuse or Detox Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Hospital (non-Psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail or Prison	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Other Destinations					
Deceased	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 36

36a. Permanent Housing Programs / Rapid Re-Housing Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

36b. Transitional Housing Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

36c. Street Outreach Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Physical Disability			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Developmental Disability			0	0	0.00%	
2c. Chronic Health			0	0	0.00%	
2d. HIV/AIDS			0	0	0.00%	
2e. Mental Health			0	0	0.00%	
2f. Substance Abuse			0	0	0.00%	

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 36

36d. Supportive Services Only (SSO) Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

36e. Safe Haven Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Additional Information

User Prompt Field	Value(s) Selected
1. Select Provider Group(s):	-None Selected-
1. Select Provider(s):	FEOC CITY ESG Homelessness Prevention(3712); WestCare ESG Project Unite HP(3728); WestCare SJVV CITY ESG Homelessness Prevention (3714)
2. Enter Start Date:	7/1/2015
3. Enter End Date PLUS 1 Day:	7/1/2016
4. Select Entry Type:	HUD
5. Enter Adult Age:	18
EDA Provider	-Default Provider-
Enter Effective Date	7/1/2016
Is using the Disability Determination field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using the Receiving Income Source field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using the Receiving Benefit field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using Interim Reviews part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes

Provider Reporting Information	Client Count Based on Uid	Unduplicated Count
FEOC CITY ESG Homelessness Prevention(3712)	29	29
WestCare ESG Project Unite HP(3728)	71	71
WestCare SJVV CITY ESG Homelessness Prevention(3714)	4	4

© 2015 Bowman Systems L.L.C. All Rights Reserved.

This document and the information contained herein should be considered business sensitive.

Bowman Systems® and the Bowman Systems® logo are trademarks of Bowman Systems L.L.C. All other brand or product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

Bowman Systems 333 Texas Street, 300 Shreveport, LA 71101 Toll Free: (844) 213-8780 Direct: (318) 213-8780 Fax: (318) 213-8784 http://www.bowmansystems.com THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK.

Question 7

7. HMIS or Comparable Database Data Quality

Total number of records for All Clients	23
Total number of records for Adults Only	23
Total number of records for Unaccompanied Youth	0
Total number of records for Leavers	1

Data Element	Don't Know or Refused	Missing Data
First Name	0	0
Last Name	0	0
SSN	0	0
Date of Birth	0	0
Race	0	0
Ethnicity	0	0
Gender	0	0
Veteran Status	0	0
Disabling Condition	0	1
Residence Prior to Entry	0	0
Zip of Last Permanent Address	0	0
Housing Status (at entry)	0	0
Income (at entry)	0	0
Income (at exit)	0	0
Non-Cash Benefits (at entry)	0	0
Non-Cash Benefits (at exit)	0	0
Physical Disability (at entry)	0	0
Developmental Disability (at entry)	0	0
Chronic Health Condition (at entry)	0	0
HIV / AIDS (at entry)	0	0
Mental Health (at entry)	0	0
Substance Abuse (at entry)	0	0
Domestic Violence (at entry)	0	0
Destination	0	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Questions 8-9

8. Persons Served During the Operating Year by Type

Number of Persons in Households Served During the Operating Year

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Adults	23	23	0	0	0
Children	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Missing Information	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	23	23	0	0	0

Average Number of persons Served Each Night

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Average Number of Persons	15.2	15.2	0	0	0

Point-in-Time Count of Persons on the Last Wednesday in

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
January	3	3	0	0	0
April	8	8	0	0	0
July	16	16	0	0	0
October	18	18	0	0	0

9. Households Served During the Operating Year

Number of Households Served During the Operating Year

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Households	22	22	0	0	0

Point-in-Time Count of Households Served on the Last Wednesday in

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
January	3	3	0	0	0
April	8	8	0	0	0
July	15	15	0	0	0
October	17	17	0	0	0

Question 12

12. Client Contacts and Engagements

Number of Persons Contacted Rates During the Operating Year

	Total	First contacted at place not meant for human habitation	First contacted at non-housing service site	First contacted at housing location	First contact place was missing
Once	7	0	7	0	0
2-5 Times	0	0	0	0	0
6-9 Times	0	0	0	0	0
10+ Times	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	7	0	7	0	0

Number of Persons Engaged by Number of Contacts During the Operating Year

	Total	First contacted at place not meant for human habitation	First contacted at non-housing service site	First contacted at housing location	First contact place was missing
1 Contact	0	0	0	0	0
2-5 Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
6-9 Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
10+ Contacts	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	0	0	0	0	0
Rate of Engagement	0	0	0	0	0

Question 15

15a. Gender - Adults

Gender of Adults
Number of Adults in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	Unknown HH Type
Male	14	14	0	0
Female	9	9	0	0
Transgendered	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	23	23	0	0

15b. Gender - Children

Gender of Children Number of Children in Households

	Total	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Male	0	0	0	0
Female	0	0	0	0
Transgendered	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0

15c. Gender - Missing Age

Gender of Persons Missing Age Information Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Male	0	0	0	0	0
Female	0	0	0	0	0
Transgendered	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0

Questions 16-17

16. Age

		lge						
Number of Persons in Households								
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type			
Under 5	0	0	0	0	0			
5 - 12	0	0	0	0	0			
13 - 17	0	0	0	0	0			
18 - 24	0	0	0	0	0			
25 - 34	4	4	0	0	0			
35 - 44	4	4	0	0	0			
45 - 54	9	9	0	0	0			
55 - 61	6	6	0	0	0			
62+	0	0	0	0	0			
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0			
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0			
Age Error (Negative Age or 100+)	0	0	0	0	0			
Total	23	23	0	0	0			

17a. Ethnicity

Ethnicity Number of Persons in Households Without With Childre

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	4	4	0	0	0
Hispanic/Latino	19	19	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Total	23	23	0	0	0

17b. Race

Race Number of Persons in Households							
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type		
White	20	20	0	0	0		
Black or African-American	3	3	0	0	0		
Asian	0	0	0	0	0		
American Indian or Alaska Native	0	0	0	0	0		
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	0	0	0	0	0		
Multiple Races	0	0	0	0	0		
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0		
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0		
Total	23	23	0	0	0		

HUD CoC APR

Annual Performance Report

Questions 18-19

18a. Physical and Mental Health Types of Conditions at Entry

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions

Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Mental Illness	2	2	0	0	0
Alcohol Abuse	0	0	0	0	0
Drug Abuse	3	3	0	0	0
Chronic Health Condition	4	4	0	0	0
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	20	20	0	0	0
Developmental Disability	0	0	0	0	0
Physical Disability	2	2	0	0	0

18b. Physical and Mental Health Known Conditions at Entry

Number of Known Conditions

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
None	2	2	0	0	0
1 Condition	13	13	0	0	0
2 Conditions	5	5	0	0	0
3+ Conditions	3	3	0	0	0
Condition Unknown	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL:	23	23	0	0	0

19a. Victims of Domestic Violence

Past Domestic Violence Experience Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Children in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Yes	1	1	0	0	0
No	22	22	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	23	23	0	0	0

19b. When Past Domestic Violence Experience Occurred

Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Children in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Less than 3 Months	0	0	0	0	0
3 to 6 Months Ago	0	0	0	0	0
6 to 12 Months Ago	0	0	0	0	0
More than a year Ago	1	1	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0	0

20a1. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Homeless Situations

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Homeless Situations

N	umber	of P	ersons	in H	ouse	holds	5

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0
Transitional housing for homeless persons	0	0	0	0	0
Place not meant for habitation	17	17	0	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	17	17	0	0	0

20a2. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Institutional Settings

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Institutional Settings Number of Persons in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility	0	0	0	0	0
Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center	2	2	0	0	0
Hospital (Non-psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail, prison , or juvenile detention facility	0	0	0	0	0
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	2	2	0	0	0

20a3. Residence Prior to Program Entry - Other Locations

Residence Prior to Program Entry - Other Locations Number of Adults and Unaccompanied Youth in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
PSH for Homeless persons	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, no Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Hotel/Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Staying or Living with Family	4	4	0	0	0
Staying or Living with Friend(s)	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	4	4	0	0	0

Questions 21-22

21. Veteran Status

Number of Adults in Households
Number of Addits in Households

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	Unknown HH Type
Veteran	1	1	0	0
Not a Veteran	22	22	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0
Total	23	23	0	0

22a1. Physical and Mental Health Condition Types at Exit - Leavers

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions Leavers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown		
Mental Illness	0	0	0	0		
Alcohol Abuse	0	0	0	0		
Drug Abuse	0	0	0	0		
Chronic Health Condition	0	0	0	0		
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	0	0	0	0		
Developmental Disability	0	0	0	0		
Physical Disability	1	1	0	0		

22a2. Known Physical and Mental Health Condition at Exit - Leavers

Number of Known Conditions Leavers - Total Number by Type

Leavers - rotal Number by Type						
	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown		
None	0	0	0	0		
1 Condition	1	1	0	0		
2 Conditions	0	0	0	0		
3+ Conditions	0	0	0	0		
Condition Unknown	0	0	0	0		
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0		
Information Missing	0	0	0	0		
τοτ	AL: 1	1	0	0		

HUD CoC APR

Annual Performance Report

Questions 21-22

22b1. Physical and Mental Health Condition Types at Exit – Stayers

Known Physical and Mental Health Conditions

Stayers - Total Number by Type

	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown
Mental Illness	1	1	0	0
Alcohol Abuse	0	0	0	0
Drug Abuse	3	3	0	0
Chronic Health Condition	3	3	0	0
HIV/AIDS and Related Diseases	19	19	0	0
Developmental Disability	0	0	0	0
Physical Disability	1	1	0	0

22b2. Known Physical and Mental Health Condition at Exit – Stayers

Number of Known Conditions Stavers - Total Number by Type

Stayers - Total Number by Type						
	All Persons	Adults	Children	Unknown		
None	3	3	0	0		
1 Condition	12	12	0	0		
2 Conditions	4	4	0	0		
3+ Conditions	3	3	0	0		
Condition Unknown	0	0	0	0		
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0		
Information Missing	0	0	0	0		
TOTAL:	22	22	0	0		

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Questions 23-24

23. Cash Income Range	h Income Number of Adults					
	Income at Entry	Income at Latest Follow- up for Stayers	Income at Exit for Leavers			
No Income	3	0	0			
\$1 - \$150	0	0	0			
\$151 - \$250	5	3	0			
\$251 - \$500	2	0	0			
\$501 - \$1,000	11	3	1			
\$1,001 - \$1,500	1	1	0			
\$1,501 - \$2,000	0	0	0			
\$2,001 +	1	0	0			
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0			
Information Missing	0	15	0			
Total	23	22	1			

24.a Number of Adults By Income Category	Adults at Entry	Adults at Latest Follow- up (Stayers)	Adults at Exit (Leavers)
Adults with Only Earned Income	2	0	0
Adults with Only Other Income	18	7	1
Adults with Both Earned Income and Other Income	0	0	0
Adults with No Income	3	0	0
Adults with DK/R Income Information	0	0	0
Adults with Missing Income Information	0	15	0
Total Adults	23	22	1
Adults with Income Information at Entry and Follow-up/Exit		7	1

24.b.1 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Adult Stayers with Income Info at Entry and Follow-up)	Had Income Category at Entry and Not at Follow-up	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Follow-up	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Follow-up	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Follow-up	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Follow-up	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Follow-up	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	0	0	0	7	7
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults with Other Income	0	0	7	0	0	0	7
Average Change in Other Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults Any Income	0	0	7	0	0	0	7
Avg Change in Overall Income	0	0		0	0		\$0.00

24.b.2 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Adult Leavers with Income Info at Entry and Exit)	Had Income Category at Entry and Did Not Have at Exit	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Exit	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Exit	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Exit	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Exit	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Exit	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults with Other Income	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
Avg Change in Other Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults Any Income	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
Avg Change in Overall Income	0	0		0	0		\$0.00

24.b.3 Income Change by Income Category (Universe: Total Adults with Income Info at Entry and Either Follow Up (Stayers) or Exit (Leavers))	Had Income Category at Entry and Did Not at Follow- up/Exit	Retained Income Category But Had Less \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Retained Income Category and Same \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Retained Income Category and Increased \$ at Follow-up/Exit	Did Not Have Income Category at Entry and Gained it at Follow-up/Exit	Did Not Have the Income Category at Entry or at Follow-up/Exit	Total Adults (Including those with no Income)
Adults with Earned Income	0	0	0	0	0	8	8
Avg Change in Earned Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults with Other Income	0	0	8	0	0	0	8
Avg Change in Other Income	0	0		0	0		
Adults Any Income	0	0	8	0	0	0	8
Avg Change in Overall Income	0	0		0	0		\$0.00

Question 25

25a1. Cash Income Types by Exit Status - Leavers

Cash-Income Sources Type of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Earned Income	0	0	0	0
Unemployment Insurance	0	0	0	0
SSI	0	0	0	0
SSDI	1	1	0	0
Veteran's Disability	0	0	0	0
Private Disability Insurance	0	0	0	0
Worker's Compensation	0	0	0	0
TANF or Equivalent	0	0	0	0
General Assistance	0	0	0	0
Retirement (Social Security)	0	0	0	0
Veteran's Pension	0	0	0	0
Pension from Former Job	0	0	0	0
Child Support	0	0	0	0
Alimony (Spousal Support)	0	0	0	0
Other Source	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0

25a2. Cash-Income by Exit Status - Leavers

Cash-Income Sources Number of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	0	0	0	0
1+ Source(s)	1	1	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0

Question 25

25b1. Cash-Income Sources - Stayers

Cash-Income Sources Type of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Earned Income	2	2	0	0
Unemployment Insurance	3	3	0	0
SSI	8	8	0	0
SSDI	2	2	0	0
Veteran's Disability	0	0	0	0
Private Disability Insurance	0	0	0	0
Worker's Compensation	0	0	0	0
TANF or Equivalent	1	1	0	0
General Assistance	4	4	0	0
Retirement (Social Security)	0	0	0	0
Veteran's Pension	0	0	0	0
Pension from Former Job	0	0	0	0
Child Support	0	0	0	0
Alimony (Spousal Support)	0	0	0	0
Other Source	1	1	0	0
TOTAL	21	21	0	0

25b2. Cash Income Number of Sources - Stayers

Cash-Income Sources Number of Cash-Income Sources by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	3	3	0	0
1+ Source(s)	19	19	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	22	22	0	0

Question 26

26a1. Non-Cash Benefit Types by Exit Status - Leavers

Non-Cash Benefits Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program	0	0	0	0
MEDICAID Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
MEDICARE Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
State Children's Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
WIC	0	0	0	0
VA Medical Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Child Care Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Transportation Services	0	0	0	0
Other TANF-Funded Services	0	0	0	0
Temporary Rental Assistance	0	0	0	0
Section 8, Public Housing, Rental Assistance	0	0	0	0
Other Source	1	1	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0

26a2. Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status - Leavers

Client Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status Number of Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Leavers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	0	0	0	0
1+ Source(s)	1	1	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	1	1	0	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 26

26b1. Non-Cash Benefit Sources - Stayers

Non-Cash Benefits Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program	8	8	0	0
MEDICAID Health Insurance	2	2	0	0
MEDICARE Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
State Children's Health Insurance	0	0	0	0
WIC	0	0	0	0
VA Medical Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Child Care Services	0	0	0	0
TANF Transportation Services	0	0	0	0
Other TANF-Funded Services	0	0	0	0
Temporary Rental Assistance	0	0	0	0
Section 8, Public Housing, Rental Assistance	1	1	0	0
Other Source	21	21	0	0
TOTAL	32	32	0	0

26b2. Number of Non-Cash Benefit Sources - Stayers

Client Non-Cash Benefits by Exit Status Number of Non-Cash Benefits by Number of Persons - Stayers

	Total	Adults	Children	Age Unknown
No Sources	1	1	0	0
1+ Source(s)	21	21	0	0
Don't Know / Refused	0	0	0	0
Missing this Information	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	22	22	0	0

Question 27

27. Length of Participation by Exit Status

Length of Participation by Exit Status Number of Persons

	Total	Leavers	Stayers
Less than 30 days	0	0	0
31 to 60 days	0	0	0
61 to 180 days	3	1	2
181 to 365 days	7	0	7
366 to 730 days (1-2 Yrs)	13	0	13
731 to 1095 days (2-3 Yrs)	0	0	0
1096 to 1460 days (3-4 Yrs)	0	0	0
1461 to 1825 days (4-5 Yrs)	0	0	0
More than 1825 Days (>5 Yrs)	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0
Total	23	1	22

Average and Median Length of Participation in Days

	Average Length	Median Length
Leavers	89	89
Stayers	382	394.5

Question 29

29a1. Destination by Household Type and Length of Stay (All Leavers who Stayed More than 90 Day: Number of Leavers in Households

Permanent Destinations

	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Owned by Client, no Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no Ongoing subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
PSH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Living with Family, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Living with Friends, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Temporary Destinations					
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0
TH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Family, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Friends, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Place Not Meant for Human Habitation	0	0	0	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
Hotel or Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Institutional Settings					
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
Psychiatric Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Substance Abuse or Detox Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Hospital (non-Psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail or Prison	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Other Destinations					
Deceased	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0

Question 29

29a2. Destination by Household Type and Length of Stay (All Leavers who Stayed 90 Days or Less) Number of Leavers in Households

Permanent Destinations					
	Total	Without Children	With Children and Adults	With Only Children	Unknown HH Type
Owned by Client, no Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Owned by Client, with Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, no Ongoing subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with VASH Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
Rental by Client, with other Ongoing Subsidy	0	0	0	0	0
PSH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Living with Family, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Living with Friends, Permanent Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Temporary Destinations					
Emergency Shelter	0	0	0	0	0
TH for Homeless Persons	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Family, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Staying with Friends, Temporary Tenure	0	0	0	0	0
Place Not Meant for Human Habitation	0	0	0	0	0
Safe Haven	0	0	0	0	0
Hotel or Motel, Paid by Client	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0
Institutional Settings					
Foster Care	0	0	0	0	0
Psychiatric Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Substance Abuse or Detox Facility	0	0	0	0	0
Hospital (non-Psychiatric)	0	0	0	0	0
Jail or Prison	1	1	0	0	0
Subtotal	1	1	0	0	0
Other Destinations					
Deceased	0	0	0	0	0
Other	0	0	0	0	0
Don't Know/Refused	0	0	0	0	0
Information Missing	0	0	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	0	0	0	0

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 36

36a. Permanent Housing Programs / Rapid Re-Housing Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			23	22	95.65%	
2a. Total Income Measure			23	8	34.78%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			23	0	0.00%	

36b. Transitional Housing Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

36c. Street Outreach Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Physical Disability			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Developmental Disability			0	0	0.00%	
2c. Chronic Health			0	0	0.00%	
2d. HIV/AIDS			0	0	0.00%	
2e. Mental Health			0	0	0.00%	
2f. Substance Abuse			0	0	0.00%	

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Question 36

36d. Supportive Services Only (SSO) Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2b. Earned Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

36e. Safe Haven Programs

Performance Measure	Exhibit 2 Target # of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Exhibit 2 Target % of persons who were expected to accomplish this measure	Actual # of person in the program for whom the measure is appropriate	Actual # of persons who accomplished this measure	Actual % of persons who accomplished this measure	% Difference between Exhibit 2 Target and Actual Performance
1. Housing Stability Measure			0	0	0.00%	
2a. Total Income Measure			0	0	0.00%	

HUD CoC APR Annual Performance Report Additional Information

User Prompt Field	Value(s) Selected
1. Select Provider Group(s):	-None Selected-
1. Select Provider(s):	Oasis(3731)
2. Enter Start Date:	1/1/2015
3. Enter End Date PLUS 1 Day:	7/1/2016
4. Select Entry Type:	HUD
5. Enter Adult Age:	18
EDA Provider	Oasis(3731)
Enter Effective Date	7/1/2016
Is using the Disability Determination field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using the Receiving Income Source field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using the Receiving Benefit field part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes
Is using Interim Reviews part of your workflow for HUD reporting?	Yes

Provider Reporting Information	Client Count Based on Uid	Unduplicated Count
Oasis(3731)	23	23

© 2015 Bowman Systems L.L.C. All Rights Reserved.

This document and the information contained herein should be considered business sensitive.

Bowman Systems® and the Bowman Systems® logo are trademarks of Bowman Systems L.L.C. All other brand or product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

Bowman Systems 333 Texas Street, 300 Shreveport, LA 71101 Toll Free: (844) 213-8780 Direct: (318) 213-8780 Fax: (318) 213-8784 http://www.bowmansystems.com THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK.

City of Fresno Program Year 2014 – ADDENDUM Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (July 1, 2014-June 30, 2015)

Federal Program Entitlement Allocations for the:

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) Housing Opportunities for Persons with HIV/AIDS (HOPWA)

ADDENDUM September 7, 2016

City of Fresno Development and Resource Management Housing Division 2600 Fresno Street, Room 3076 Fresno, CA 93721 (559) 621-8300

City of Fresno

Pr	ogram Year 2014 Addendum Summary	2
I.	Community Development Block Grant CDBG Fund Expenditures	3
п.	HOME Investment Partnerships Act	
	Section 215 Requirement	4
	Tenant Based Rental Assistance	4
III.	Emergency Solutions Grant Program (ESG)	
	Progress Related to Prior Year Funds	4
IV.	Full Performance and Evaluation Report	
	Goals and Outcomes	5

Addendum Summary

On October 1, 2015 the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community Planning and Development (CPD) Division received the City of Fresno's (City) Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for HUD's Program Year (PY) 2014.

HUDs PY 2014 covers the City of Fresno's Fiscal Year July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 and is the final year associated with the City's five-year Consolidated Plan, which covered the program years 2010 through 2014.

According to HUD, the grant agreements for CDBG, HOME, and ESG were executed by HUD on June 15, 2015, in the ending month of the 2014 program year. It was determined that the City's PY 2014 CAPER did not contain sufficient information regarding performance and evaluation. As a result, HUD requested that the City report PY 2014 performance and evaluation of these programs in the PY 2015 CAPER since the PY 2014 programs were largely funded and carried out during the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

HUD requested that the City include several performance and evaluation updates in the PY 2015 CAPER, this was done where appropriate. However, because the PY 2014 CAPER represents the fifth and final year of the 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan, the City has included the following information in an addendum to clearly identify the Consolidated Plan that this program year is associated with.

- 1. PY 2014 Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG):
 - CDBG Fund Expenditures and Updated Reports
- 2. PY 2014 HOME Funded Activities
 - Section 215 Requirements
 - Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program Goals
- 3. PY 2014 Emergency Solutions Grant (HESG)
 - Summary of Prior Year Activity
- 4. PY 2014 Five-year Performance and Evaluation

I. PY 2014 Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)

Public Service Obligation

Public service unliquidated obligations, as stated in the PY 2014 CAPER, were \$829,500. That amount was based upon the appropriations/obligations in the PY 2014 Annual Action Plan. In August 2015 City staff drew down funds from HUDs Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS) related to the actual expenditures associated with the activities. The table below summarizes the issue identified.

PY 2014 Activities	Appropriation/ Obligation	Drawn	Revised Balance
Senior Hot Meals	\$151,600.00	\$129,902.79	\$21,697.21
After School	\$677,900.00	\$628,316.48	\$49,583.52
Programs			
Totals	\$829,500	\$758,219.27	\$71,280.73

Administration and Planning Obligation

HUD commented that the planning and administration activities cap should calculate based on accurate program income received in the PY 2014; however, the 2014 program income was reported inconsistently between IDIS reports (\$596,085.30) and the PY 2014 CAPER (\$260,900).

The City identified that the discrepancy was due to double-booking B-13 program income. City staff worked with HUD representative to correct the error in IDIS and this issue has been resolved as of April 14, 2016. The updated CDBG Financial Summary Report PR26 Report correctly reflects program income of \$335,198.64.

Benefit to Low to Moderate-Income Persons

HUD commented that it appeared the City was unable to reimburse the PY 2014 CDBG funds that recipients shall use for activities that benefit low-and moderateincome persons as reported in the PY 2014 CAPER, since the agreement was executed in June 2015. The updated CDBG Financial Summary Report (PR26) addresses this concern.

II. HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME)

Section 215

As reported in the PY 2014 CAPER, the city completed two rental HOME funded activities: Sierra Gateway Senior Residence II and City View. The City did not address Section 215 requirements in the PY 2014 CAPER; however, both projects met Section 215 requirements.

		Units		Met Section 215	
HOME Activities		Total	HOME	Requirements	
Sierra Gateway II	Multi-Family				
5103 N. Marty	New Construction	68	67	Yes	
City View	Multi-Family				
802 Van Ness	New Construction	45	11	Yes	

Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA)

The City reported "income level of rehabilitation program beneficiaries" and "affordable housing accomplishments for specific populations" with TBRA program goals when it should be the actual number of beneficiaries.

Page 16 of the PY 2014 CAPER lists TBRA as a Housing Rehabilitation Activity in the summary table. The City reported this in error, as TBRA is not considered a rehabilitation program. Page 18 of the PY 2014 CAPER properly lists TBRA under the correct category, which is Affordable Housing Accomplishments for Specific Populations and the accurate description of "number of beneficiaries" is used.

III. Emergency Solutions Grant (HESG) -

Shortfall of Allocations and Expenditures Deadline

The HESG Program experienced delays for several years involving prior funding; there were delays in both the publication of available funding and the award of funds to subrecipients in a timely manner. In March, 2015 HUD acknowledged that the City is current and has committed the 2014 ESG funds to specific activities in accordance with IDIS report PR91: ESG Financial Summary as of March 2016. The PY 2014 HUD Allocation for HESG was \$517,584, and funds expire on June 30, 2017. However, nearly all of those funds have been reimbursed to the Subrecipients by the City, and drawn in IDIS.

Additionally, the City has worked with HUD to report that all overdue prior program year ESG funds have been expended and the City is anticipating HUD's approval to draw these funds in IDIS shortly.

The electronic grants management system managed by HUD's Office of Special Needs Assistance Programs (SNAPS) is known as *e-snaps*, and it supports Annual Performance Reporting. The City continues to work with the information captured through the Homeless Information Management System and HUDs *e-snaps* program to report outcomes/accomplishments of all program activities in the 2015 CAPER and IDIS as HUD has requested.

An additional point regarding the impact of this funding, service agencies and volunteers organize on a nearly annual basis to conduct a "Point-in-Time Count." The 2015 HUD Point-in-Time report shows a 37% decrease in the number of unsheltered homeless people in Fresno and surrounding areas from 2014, and a 53% decrease since 2013.

IV. PY 2014 Updated Five-year Performance and Evaluation Reporting

Program Year 2014 (PY 2014) was the fifth and final year of the City's updated 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan. The narrative below summarizes the City's accomplishments by the goals and objectives outlined in the Consolidated Plan and PY 2014 Annual Action Plan.

Goals and Outcomes

- Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan. 91.520(a)
- Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the consolidated plan and explain, if applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and objectives. 91.520(g)
- Assess how the jurisdiction's use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific objectives identified in the plan, giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified.

Overall, the City made significant progress in addressing the high priorities originally identified in the Consolidated Plan. There were also several objectives that were not met for a variety of reasons. Primarily, many of the programs originally envisioned were restructured and redesigned. It is also important to note that in May, 2010, just months before the 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan came into effect, Mayor Swearengin declared a fiscal emergency for the City and released a proposed

budget beginning June 30, 2010 that addressed a \$30.6 million revenue shortfall. This coupled with several other factors, including organizational changes and staff turnover impacted the City's capacity.

The goals of the 2010-14 ConPlan were ambitious - even in a hyper inflated housing market. The housing market collapse compounded with the city's fiscal emergency created an environment that could not support the implementation of those goals. Given the circumstances, the City was successful in maintaining solvency through sacrifice.

During this time, the City also shifted away from a citywide approach and began focusing resources more strategically on focus neighborhoods. In addition, the City instituted national priorities and best practices, especially in terms of homelessness. Through the participation of several national initiatives like 25 Cities, and the Mayor's Challenge to End Homelessness, the City worked with service agencies and the Fresno Madera Continuum of Care to implement the national best practice of a Housing First model.

Many of the goals included in the 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan were comprehensive in nature in that they included all projects that addressed Consolidated Plan priorities, even if they did not receive federal funding. For the purpose of this report, the City will focus on programs and projects funded with federal grant sources, including HOME, CDBG, ESG, and HOPWA. In doing so, the City hopes to gain insights in how to better use these funds in the future.

<u>HIGHLIGHTS</u>

- Tremendous progress made in reduction of homelessness, helping persons leave encampments and find suitable housing.
- Addition of 171 CHDO units plus 250 rental units
- Establishing firm foundation for sustainability of low income neighborhoods through a combination of infrastructure investments, code enforcement, and neighborhood capacity. From CDBG perspective, focus is now on specific neighborhoods. The City feels this will be more productive going forward
- Nationally recognized lead paint reduction efforts
- City participated as the lead agency for the Building Neighborhood Capacity Program focused on resident led revitalization effort in historically neglected neighborhoods

CHALLENGES

- Loss of programs such as Redevelopment and Enterprise Zones.
- Rehabilitation programs had to adjust several times, from loans to grants, deal with rising costs
- Organizational changes and staff turnover effecting capacity

• Slow performance of subrecipient contractors which reduced timeliness and increased costs.

Goal 1A: Expand Affordable Housing Opportunities

- CHDO Development:

In PY 2014, the City entered into a \$210,000 HOME CHDO Agreement with Habitat for Humanity, a City-certified CHDO, for the construction of two single-family homes (IDIS #5864). The project is currently under development and is expected to be completed by March 15, 2017. A separate Habitat CHDO project funded in August 2013 (IDIS #5802) completed the construction of nine single-family homes in the area of Laval and Belgravia at the end of PY2015.

In addition to the two CHDO projects described above, the City funded and completed three large CHDO projects during the course of the five year Consolidated Plan, including Parc Grove (IDIS #5800), Lowell CDC at 415 N Calaveras (#5744), and Bridges at Florence (#5742). These three projects included a total of 160 units, of which 38 are HOME-assisted. The original goal in the Consolidated Plan specified a range of 125 to 250 new affordable units. Once the two Habitat projects are complete, the City will have assisted with the development of 171 units.

- Rental / Tax Credit Development:

In the PY 2014 Action Plan, the City originally planned to support the new construction of Kings Canyon Place, a proposed 89-unit affordable multifamily housing development to be located on E. Kings Canyon Road between S. Peach Avenue and S. Adler Avenue. While the City remains supportive, the 2014 HOME funds were reprogrammed to the Lowell Neighborhood Project described below.

Below is a summary of projects that were either completed or made progress in PY 2014. In addition to the funded projects, the City provided a technical review and support for two Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) applications to help increase the production and availability of low-income, multi-family rental units.

Lowell Neighborhood Project (#5928)

The City committed \$1,215,000 of HOME funds for the acquisition and rehabilitation of 11 rental units in March 2016. The project remains underway.

SIERRA GATEWAY II (#5748)

The City provided \$997,572.55 of HOME funds to Redding Retirement Housing Corporation for the construction of a 68-unit affordable senior housing project located at 5103 N. Marty Avenue. Of the 68 units, 67 were designated as HOME-assisted units available to low- and very low-income seniors. Construction was completed on December 11, 2014 and the completion date of the project is July 23, 2015.

DROGE/City View (#5778)

The City provided \$1,812,341.98 of HOME funds to the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno for the construction of City View (AKA Droge), a 45-unit multifamily workforce housing complex. Of the 45 units, 11 were designated as HOME-assisted units available to low- and very low- income households. City View is located at 802 N. Van Ness Avenue. Construction was completed on January 27, 2015 with a completion date of July 23, 2015.

FULTONIA WEST (#5804)

In 2013, the City provided \$2,114,000 of HOME funds to the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno for the construction of two multi-family housing complexes at 541-545 N. Fulton Street and 4496-4538 E. Hamilton Avenue. The City is preparing close-out of this project at the time of this writing.

Over the course of the Strategic Plan, the City also subsidized the acquisition and rehabilitation of 132 units in the Plaza Mendoza Apartments (#5807), which was completed in 2014, and the Renaissance at Santa Clara (#5741), completed in 2013. All together, these projects will provide 250 units of decent, affordable rental housing to low income residents in Fresno, 162 of which are HOME-assisted. The original Consolidated Plan goal called for the support of six tax credit properties per year. Overall, the City provided HOME funds to six rental projects and feels the selected projects make a substantial contribution to the affordable housing stock in Fresno.

- Homeownership Assistance /Homeownership for Large Families:

In PY 2014, the City had a total of \$1,740,000 of CalHome funds available with a goal of assisting 34 homebuyers. The City fell short of that goal, assisting a total of 14 buyers.

The Strategic Plan set a goal of assisting 80 very-low income large families each year and an additional 100 first-time homebuyers with down payment and closing cost assistance. This goal and objective is funded primarily through NSP funds and CalHome funds received through the State of California. Over the course of the five year Strategic Plan, the City assisted 53 Homebuyers with CalHome. The NSP 1 Program acquired a total of 366 units. HOME funds were used to assist 7 buyers in the early years of the plan. In addition to programs administered directly by the City, the City coordinated with the Housing Authority, who administered homeownership programs and training.

- Senior Housing:

The City did not set a goal for senior housing as part of the PY 2014 Action Plan. In terms of the Five Year Strategic Plan, the City set a goal of producing a total of 400 units in conjunction with the Redevelopment Agency and the Housing Authority. In addition to Bridges at Florence and Sierra Gateway II, discussed above, the City originally supported two additional senior developments, Transit Village and Allied Plaza, before withdrawing HOME funds due to compliance issues. Other projects, such as Palm View Gardens, were unsuccessful at receiving LIHTC tax credit funding.

Goal 1B: Promote Fair Housing

- Update Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice:

The City completed its update to the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (AI) in March 2016. The City will affirmatively further fair housing by following the recommended actions in the adopted plan for the remainder of the current Consolidated Plan, at which time it will prepare a Fair Housing Assessment based on HUD's new fair housing regulations.

- Support Fair Housing Council:

In each year of the five year plan, the City provided operating support to the Fair Housing Council of Central California (FHCCC). With these funds, the organization was able to receive and investigate complaints of fair housing discrimination and conduct outreach and training for housing providers. This included ADA training for 98 attendees in January, 2015 and a Fair Housing Conference in April, 2015. In addition, FHCCC conducted systemic home sales testing within the cities of Fresno and Clovis. The testing began in December of 2014 and was completed in February of 2015.

Goal 2A: Improve Existing Housing through Code Enforcement and Rehabilitation

- Code Enforcement:

The City utilized CDBG to support code enforcement in each year of the Five-year Consolidated Plan. Over the course of the five years, perhaps no other program was more re-tooled than CDBG-funded code enforcement. Per HUD's direction, the City now focuses its code enforcement in specific neighborhoods and closely ties its efforts with other efforts to revitalize the neighborhoods and address issues that cause deterioration. CDBG-funded code enforcement plays a key role in the City's **RESTORE Fresno** initiative launched in May 2015. Restore Fresno is a

comprehensive initiative to improve property values, living conditions, public safety and the overall quality of life in historically neglected neighborhoods. In FY2014, the City set a goal assessing 450 houses in two of the five specific, targeted neighborhoods (El Dorado, Jefferson, Kirk, Lowell, Yokomi). The City identified and issued a total of 490 violations. The program is well coordinated with other stakeholders and service providers such as the Building Neighborhood Capacity Program and the City's Police Department focused on community oriented policing using neighborhood resource officers. The City's 2017 Fiscal Year budget included the addition of ten new specific, targeted neighborhoods.

- Housing Rehabilitation:

In the five year plan, the City prioritized the rehabilitation of both rental and owner housing in substandard condition. The overall goal was to rehabilitate a total of 2,000 housing units over the course of the five year plan. Over the course of that term, the City assisted with the rehabilitation of 233 rental units with HOME funds, 39 homeowner units with HOME funds, and 95 homeowner units with CDBG funds. These figures do not include housing assisted with Housing Authority funds, RDA, NSP, and other units included in the original goal.

In 2014, the City set a goal of 36 homeowner rehabilitations from new funding. The City also had additional homeowner rehabilitation funds from prior years that realized goals within the 2014 year. In 2014, the City did not set a goal for the rehabilitation of rental housing. However, two projects from previous years remained underway. Progress for all rehabilitation projects are summarized below.

Viking Village (#5806)

In 2013, the City provided \$1,004,751.85 of HOME funds to the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno for the rehabilitation of an existing multi-family housing complex as part of HUD's Rental Assistance Demonstration Program. The Viking Village Apartments are located at 4250 Chestnut Avenue. Rehabilitation of the project was completed at the end of the PY 2014 year with a completion date of September, 2015.

Cedar Courts / Inyo Terrace (#5805)

In 2013, the City provided \$1,506,013.26 of HOME funds to the Housing Authority of the City of Fresno for the rehabilitation of two existing multi-family housing complexes as part of HUD's Rental Assistance Demonstration Program. The Cedar Courts Apartments are located at 4216 E. Hamilton Avenue and the Inyo Terrace Apartments are located at 510 S. Peach Avenue. These projects were completed as of September 2015.

Over the five year strategic plan, the City assisted with the rehabilitation of 233 decent, affordable rental units, of which 15 are HOME-assisted. In addition to Viking Village, Cedar Courts, and Inyo Terrace, the City had used HOME funds to support the rehabilitation of Hotel Fresno in 2011, 72 units of mixed-income located at 1263

Broadway Plaza. Due to compliance issues, the City removed the HOME funded from the development.

Targeted Area Rehabilitation (HOME \$1,500,000)

The City provided Fresno EOC with \$1.5 million in HOME funds to administer a homeowner rehabilitation program that served the southwestern, southeastern, and central Fresno neighborhoods. The Program provided up to \$65,000 to low and moderate income households for rehabilitation of their owner occupied single-family dwelling. By June of 2016, EOC completed 19 rehabilitations and expended all of the funds.

2013 Targeted Area Distressed (CDBG \$500,000)

The City will use \$500,000 of CDBG funds carried over from previous years to provide up to \$15,000 in grants to low to moderate income households to address health and safety violations within the southwestern, southeastern, and central areas of Fresno. This program was also contracted to EOC for contract management. To date, only two properties have been assisted and \$34,083.42 has been disbursed. The balance of funds will be reprogrammed.

Senior Paint Program

In PY 2014, the City set a goal of assisting 13 owners with the Senior Paint Program. This program uses licensed contractors to assist low-income senior residents with the painting of the exterior of their home. During the program year, 11 senior households benefited from the program for a total of \$48,061 expended in CDBG funds during the program year. These figures include carry-over funds from PY2013. It should be noted that of the 11 households, 6 are reported under the PY 2014 activity (#5857) and 5 are reported under the PY2013 activity (#5821). This program received funding throughout the five-year plan and assisted a total of 70 households.

Emergency Grant Program

In PY 2014, the City set a goal of assisting 3 housing units with the Emergency Grant Program. This program provides a maximum of \$15,000 in grant funds to address serious health and safety issues, in owner-occupied homes, that have been identified by the City. This program was funded with \$39,600 in CDBG funds. During the program year, \$36,825 was expended to address health and safety issues on two homes. This program received funding throughout the five-year plan and assisted a total of 23 households.

Lead Paint:

In PY 2014, the City completed the remediation of lead paint in 42 homes using funds awarded through the Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control Program. The program also included education and outreach to 1,194 homes with children under the age of 6. The program received a \$100,000 grant and an Award of Excellence from the U.S. Conference of Mayors.

 Replacement of Dilapidated Housing: Replace/reconstruct at least 12 dilapidated housing units annually.

In PY 2014, the City did not budget any funds to address this five year goal. Over the course of the five year plan, the City funded a number of projects that addressed the replacement or substantial rehabilitation of dilapidated housing. This includes 381 units addressed through NSP I and II and the Habitat for Humanity projects discussed above.

- Redevelopment of Blighted Properties: Redevelop six blighted properties annually.

The City did not originally budget funds to this goal in PY 2014. However, funds were eventually reprogrammed to the Laval Neighborhood project discussed above under the CHDO goal. In PY 2014, the City, in partnership with Habitat for Humanity, completed the rehabilitation of a single-family house located in the Lowell neighborhood, located at 386 N. Park Avenue (#5809). The project was completed in August, 2015.

In addition to the projects described above, the City completed 375/380 N. Park Ave. (#5796) during the Strategic Plan. Completed in October 2013, the City provided \$157,419.49 for the purchase, rehabilitation, and resale of two single family homes to eligible low-income homebuyers.

Goal 2B: Leverage Affordable Housing Funds

In the Strategic Plan, the City described potential partnerships with the Redevelopment Agency and leveraging the Housing Authority's Mortgage Credit Certificate Program. Unfortunately, the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency in 2012 and the end of the Housing Authority's Mortgage Credit Certificate Program forced changes to those goals. Despite these challenges, the City feels it has been successful in using its community development and affordable housing resources in leveraging additional sources of funding, both public and private, to meet the priorities outlined in its Consolidated Plan. This includes helping developers attract investments through the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit program and through attracting \$2 million in private and corporate funds to help address homelessness.

Goal 3: Enforce Housing Codes and Provide Relocation Assistance

- Code Enforcement/Relocation Assistance:

A full description and assessment of code enforcement is included above under the discussion of the Rehabilitation goal.

It is City policy not to cause the relocation or displacement of any persons affected by any housing project or program. In the event displacement should occur, the City takes appropriate relocation measures will be employed as required by the City's relocation procedures pursuant to HUD regulations. Over the course of the five year plan, relocation was triggered as part of the Fulton Court Rehabilitation Project. To reduce the effects of the project, vacant units were rehabilitated first to allow tenants to relocate to these units.

Goal 4: Use Planning Tools to Foster Affordable Housing

Over the course of the five-year plan, the City made significant progress in updates to its planning documents, including an update to its Housing Element and adoption of a new Citywide Development Code in December 2015. The new Development Code replaced a fifty year old ordinance and provides incentives for affordable housing including density bonuses and parking reductions. In February 2016, the City brought every parcel into compliance with the General Plan land use map by rezoning the entire city. This provides land use entitlements to allow for higher density and more affordable development by right without requiring Conditional Use Permits. Additionally, the City Council adopted a series of impact fee waiver programs for affordable housing and commercial investments in neighborhoods with high concentrations of low income households. The combination of land use policy and incentive programs allows for development of affordable housing to occur without barriers.

Goal 5: Improve Infrastructure

In the PY 2014, the City budgeted a total of \$1,820,500 for Street Improvements and \$549,300 for improvements to parks and community facilities serving low income areas. To date, the City completed all six street improvements funded with 2014 funds. The six street improvements benefitted a total of 15,535 residents in low income areas:

- First and Eighth (IDIS #5870): 5,915 residents
- Townsend and Heaton (IDIS #5869): 1,345 residents
- Weller and Bardell (IDIS #5868): 1,530 residents
- Ashlan and Holland (IDIS #5867): 1,990 residents
- Ashlan and West (IDIS #5866): 2,595 residents
- Roy & Almy Reconstruction Phase I (IDIS #5858): 2,160 residents

In PY 2014, the City also completed work at seven community facilities and parks funded in 2013 and 2014. These projects benefitted a total of 21,096 residents in low-income areas:

- Mosqueda (IDIS# 5842): 4,810 residents
- Pinedale (IDIS# 5841): 3,955 residents
- Ted C. Wills (IDIS# 5840): 3,095 residents
- Romain Park (IDIS# 5839): 3,920 residents
- Holmes (IDIS# 5834): 1,222 residents

- Frank H. Ball (IDIS# 5833): 2,569 residents
- Chandler (IDIS# 5871): 1,525 residents

In addition to the projects completed above, the City funded and completed two Street Improvement projects in 2010 and 2011, totaling \$1,433,773.14 in expenditures and benefitting 3,955 residents.

In addition to CDBG, the City used non-federal resources to meet this priority need as well, including Fresno gas tax funds and Measure C funds. One specific goal and objective described in the Consolidated Plan that was addressed with non-federal funds were street lighting. Due to severe budget constraints and vandalism, the City's budgets called for 10,000 of the 42,000 to be de-energized. Approximately 5,000 were darkened because of copper wire theft. However, the City used an effective low-cost method to deter theft and used non-federal funds to improve lighting throughout the City.

Goal 6: Crime Prevention

In the PY 2014 year, the City disbursed a total of \$36,764 of CDBG funds for Graffiti Removal. During the program year the Graffiti Abatement Team abated 80,900 incidents of graffiti of which 52,972 took place in low income areas totaling nearly two million square feet of graffiti being cleaned up during the 2014 Program Year. Target neighborhoods identified in the Consolidated Plan were served proactively and account for 35% of the overall graffiti program. A total of 101,330 residents benefitted from this program.

The City supported additional crime prevention programs throughout the term of five year plan, including efforts by District Crime Suppression Teams (DCST). In low-income areas, the DCST enhance the level of service provided by patrol officers and provide an increased visibility of uniformed patrol officers in the neighborhoods they serve. Due to changing priorities, the City does not currently use Consolidated Plan funds to directly fund crime prevention activities.

Goal 7: Provide Services to Homeless

Overall, the City's Strategic Plan goals for serving homeless populations were a subset of the overall strategies and objectives developed by the Fresno-Madera Continuum of Care (FMCoC). The goal of the FMCoC is to prevent, reduce and ultimately end homelessness in the Fresno/Madera metropolitan and rural areas. Goal and priority setting and the identification of obstacles are the responsibility of the participating homeless providers through the FMCoC. The City's role is primarily support and oversight of the ESG funds for which it is responsible. The FMCoC sets priorities for all homeless initiatives, including other federal homeless funds such as SHP and State Emergency Housing and Assistance Program (EHAP) funding.

Over the last five years, the City and FMCoC have made great strides to reduce the amount of homelessness within the City and the region. At the close of the PY 2014 program year, the FMCoC announced that total homelessness in the Fresno-Madera County area had a 34 percent decrease from January 2014 to January 2015. In the city of Fresno, homelessness overall had dropped an astounding 40% since last year. The Point-in-Time count showed the total number of homeless in Fresno fell from 2,114 to 1,270, with a 21% drop in sheltered homeless persons and a 47% decrease in unsheltered homeless persons. These reductions were a result of concentrated efforts to connect with homeless persons through efforts such as the Fresno Police Department's Homeless Task Force and the Multi-agency Access Program (MAP) Point program which breaks down barriers for individuals needing service and offers a physical location staffed with qualified navigators. The City made major efforts over the term of the five year plan to move persons from homeless encampments to stable housing. After the closure of the H Street homeless encampment, 80 percent, of the 103 homeless individuals identified, moved directly to transitional housing and remained housed one year later.

In PY 2014, the City received a total of \$517,584 in ESG funds in 2014, \$474,116.71 has already been drawn and funds will not expire until June 30, 2017. In addition, the City had a backlog of prior year ESG funds to be distributed to homeless service providers. To date, the City now has all older funds, including PY 2014, under contract with providers. ESG funds are discussed in greater detail throughout the PY 2015 CAPER and Section III of the addendum.

In PY 2014, the City budgeted \$1,000,000 of HOME funds for Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) targeted at assisting homeless persons find and maintain decent, affordable rental housing. As of the writing of this report, the City has disbursed \$682,332.60 and assisted 83 households. The program received additional funding in the PY2016 year and will continue until all resources are exhausted.

Goal 8: Provide Support to Organizations Assisting Special Needs Populations In

PY 2014, the City budgeted \$151,600 to its Senior Meals Program that provided supportive services to 593 senior citizens through daily meal and activity programs and locations throughout the City. A total of \$123,564.75 in CDBG funds was disbursed. The City funded this program in each of the five years of the Strategic Plan and assisted a total of 4,515 seniors.

In PY 2014, the City budgeted \$677,900 of CDBG funds to support the After School Program. This program provided a safe and enriching environment for 666 children in recreational and service oriented activities. The program provided services at ten locations in low income areas of the City. A total of \$628,316.48 in CDBG funds was disbursed.

Goal 9: Foster Economic Development

The City sought non-HUD funding to pursue the economic development goals described in the Consolidated Plan. Notable accomplishments during the term of the five year plan are described below.

- The City secured over \$30 million for a Bus Rapid Transit system along two, major transit routes to provide increased levels of service for transit-dependent population. This investment will provide better employment opportunities and other access to opportunities for low-income residents.
- The City began a \$20 million reconstruction of Fulton Street, Fresno's historic main street, to provide multi-modal connectivity to six blocks of distressed, historic properties and to support private investment and job creation in the surrounding neighborhood.
- In coordination with the State of California, the City is participating in the construction of the first phase of the California High Speed Rail system, the nation's first high speed rail project. This project includes over \$2 billion of public infrastructure improvements and significant job creation and mobility benefits for the residents of Fresno.
- The City partnered with numerous stakeholders in the Building Neighborhood Capacity Program designed to develop resident leadership in three low-income neighborhoods (El Dorado, Kirk, Yokomi) to address blight, safety, and other resident driven revitalization priorities related to neighborhood distress.

The City encountered some challenges as well, including the end of its federal and state empowerment zone benefits. The Empowerment Zone began in 2002. The designation provided a variety of incentives to businesses located or wanting to locate in specific lower- income neighborhoods. Businesses located in the zone received tax credits for each eligible employee hired and equipment and machinery investments to employ lower-income residents. The Fresno Empowerment Zone Board of Directors led an initiative to develop a private sector, Community Reinvestment Act Microloan program for loans under \$50,000.

Goal 10: Monitor Programs and Federally-Funded Activities

Throughout the term of the Strategic Plan, the City encountered a number of compliance issues with its HUD programs. The City has addressed all issues identified and has filled gaps in staffing to ensure programs going forward have proper oversight. The City is committed to continuing this work to ensure that programs and activities are carried out in compliance with HUD regulations.

THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK.

OTMENTOR	Office of Community Planning and Development	DATE:	09-07-16
agent d. h. House	U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development	TIME:	10:50
2.S.L	Integrated Disbursement and Information System	PAGE:	1
	PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report		
S LAR ALL RANKE	Program Year 2014		
BAN DEVELU	FRESNO , CA		

PART I: SUMMARY OF CDBG RESOURCES	
01 UNEXPENDED CDBG FUNDS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	2,825,103.66
02 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	6,280,810.00
03 SURPLUS URBAN RENEWAL	0.00
04 SECTION 108 GUARANTEED LOAN FUNDS	0.00
05 CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME	335,198.64
05a CURRENT YEAR SECTION 108 PROGRAM INCOME (FOR SI TYPE)	0.00
06 FUNDS RETURNED TO THE LINE-OF-CREDIT	0.00
06a FUNDS RETURNED TO THE LOCAL CDBG ACCOUNT	0.00
07 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AVAILABLE	0.00
08 TOTAL AVAILABLE (SUM, LINES 01-07)	9,441,112.30
PART II: SUMMARY OF CDBG EXPENDITURES	
09 DISBURSEMENTS OTHER THAN SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS AND PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	131,246.63
10 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT	0.00
11 AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT (LINE 09 + LINE 10)	131,246.63
12 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	259,476.64
13 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS	0.00
14 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL EXPENDITURES	0.00
15 TOTAL EXPENDITURES (SUM, LINES 11-14)	390,723.27
16 UNEXPENDED BALANCE (LINE 08 - LINE 15)	9,050,389.03
PART III: LOWMOD BENEFIT THIS REPORTING PERIOD	
17 EXPENDED FOR LOW/MOD HOUSING IN SPECIAL AREAS	0.00
18 EXPENDED FOR LOW/MOD MULTI-UNIT HOUSING	0.00
19 DISBURSED FOR OTHER LOW/MOD ACTIVITIES	131,246.63
20 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL LOW/MOD CREDIT	0.00
21 TOTAL LOW/MOD CREDIT (SUM, LINES 17-20)	131,246.63
22 PERCENT LOW/MOD CREDIT (LINE 21/LINE 11)	100.00%
LOW/MOD BENEFIT FOR MULTI-YEAR CERTIFICATIONS	
23 PROGRAM YEARS(PY) COVERED IN CERTIFICATION	PY: 2014 PY: PY:
24 CUMULATIVE NET EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT CALCULATION	0.00
25 CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES BENEFITING LOW/MOD PERSONS 26 PERCENT BENEFIT TO LOW/MOD PERSONS (LINE 25/LINE 24)	0.00 0.00%
	0.0078
PART IV: PUBLIC SERVICE (PS) CAP CALCULATIONS 27 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PUBLIC SERVICES	0.00
27 DISBORGED IN IDISTOR FOBLIC SERVICES 28 PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR	829,500.00
29 PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
30 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS	0.00
31 TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS (LINE 27 + LINE 28 - LINE 29 + LINE 30)	829.500.00
32 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	6,280,810.00
33 PRIOR YEAR PROGRAM INCOME	260,883.66
34 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP	0.00
35 TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP (SUM, LINES 32-34)	6,541,693.66
36 PERCENT FUNDS OBLIGATED FOR PS ACTIVITIES (LINE 31/LINE 35)	12.68%
PART V: PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION (PA) CAP	
37 DISBURSED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	259,476.64
38 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR	554,073.36
39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CORRENT PROGRAM YEAR 39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	554,073.36 10,000.00
39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	10,000.00
39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR 40 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS	10,000.00 0.00
39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR 40 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS 41 TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS (LINE 37 + LINE 38 - LINE 39 +LINE 40)	10,000.00 0.00 803,550.00
 39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR 40 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS 41 TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS (LINE 37 + LINE 38 - LINE 39 +LINE 40) 42 ENTITLEMENT GRANT 	10,000.00 0.00 803,550.00 6,280,810.00
 39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR 40 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS 41 TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS (LINE 37 + LINE 38 - LINE 39 +LINE 40) 42 ENTITLEMENT GRANT 43 CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME 	10,000.00 0.00 803,550.00 6,280,810.00 335,198.64
 39 PA UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR 40 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS 41 TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS (LINE 37 + LINE 38 - LINE 39 +LINE 40) 42 ENTITLEMENT GRANT 43 CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME 44 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PA CAP 	10,000.00 0.00 803,550.00 6,280,810.00 335,198.64 0.00



Office of Community Planning and Development U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Integrated Disbursement and Information System PR26 - CDBG Financial Summary Report Program Year 2014

09-07-16

10:50

2

DATE:

TIME:

PAGE:

FRESNO, CA

LINE 17 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 17

Report returned no data.

LINE 18 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 18 Report returned no data.

LINE 19 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 19

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2013	2	5840	5826280	Community Center Improvements (Ted C. Wills)	03E	LMA	\$323.00
2013	2	5841	5826280	Community Center Improvements (Pinedale)	03E	LMA	\$29,400.00
					03E	Matrix Code	\$29,723.00
2013	2	5833	5826280	Park Improvements (Frank H. Ball)	03F	LMA	\$19,993.88
2013	2	5834	5826280	Park Improvements (Holmes)	03F	LMA	\$2,520.75
2013	2	5839	5826280	Park Improvements (Romain Park)	03F	LMA	\$50,109.00
					03F	Matrix Code	\$72,623.63
2013	1	5821	5826286	Senior Paint Program	14A	LMH	\$28,900.00
					14A	Matrix Code	\$28,900.00
Total						-	\$131,246.63

LINE 27 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 27 Report returned no data.

LINE 37 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 37

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2014	5	5862	5850550	CDBG Administration	21A		\$230,726.64
					21A	Matrix Code	\$230,726.64
2011	7	5759	5850391	Fair Housing Program	21D		\$10,000.00
2014	4	5854	5850409	Fair Housing Council	21D		\$18,750.00
					21D	Matrix Code	\$28,750.00
Total							\$259,476.64